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To consistently maintain the Company’s leading 
status of producing high quality products being first 
preference of our customers. Also to maintain the 
standards of performance excellence with long term 
plans of expansion and diversification.

Our Vision
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To develop the Company on sound technical and 
financial footings with better productivity, excellence in 
quality and operational efficiencies at lower operating 
costs by utilizing blend of high professionalism.

To accomplish targeted results through increased 
earnings for maximum benefit to the Company 
stakeholders.

To be an equal opportunity employer taking utmost 
care of the employees for their career progression 
with better reward and recognition of their abilities 
and performance.

To fulfil general obligations towards the society, 
particularly safety, security and other environmental 
protections.

Our Mission
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•	 An Organization with well disciplined and 
professionally managed operational and 
administrative functions

•	 Pioneering status in Polyester Fiber 
manufacturing

•	 High quality manufacturing standards 

•	 Our products enjoy first preference of 
downstream users

•	 Performance excellence in all areas of 
operations

•	 Integrity in all our dealings based on 
commitments

•	 Very sound internal controls and highly 
disciplined financial management

Our Core Values

• 	 An excellent image and repute amongst
	 corporate sector of the country and 

worldwide recognition

•	 High importance to stakeholders with 
historical background of regular dividend 
payouts to shareholders when Company 
in profits
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Company Profile
RUPALI POLYESTER LIMITED was incorporated at 
Karachi in May 1980 as a Public Limited Company and 
is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (formerly 
Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges). It 
owns and operates composite facilities to manufacture 
Polyester Staple Fiber and Polyester Filament Yarn. It 
produces quality products by using latest technology 
and best quality of raw materials. The Company has 
the privilege of being one of the pioneers in Pakistan 
for manufacture of Staple Fiber of highest quality. 
Since its inception, the Company has been growing 
steadily through expansion and diversified operations. 
The assets of the Company have increased to
Rs. 6,502 million from the initial capital outlay of 
Rs.150 million. 

The Company has a Polymerization Unit with a 
capacity of 105 metric tons per day, Polyester 
Filament Yarn capacity of 30 metric tons per day and 
a Polyester Staple Fiber capacity of 65 metric tons 
per day. The Company has put up an additional POY 
line with a capacity of 28 M. Tons per day at a cost of 
around Rs.162 million. The various products of Rupali 
are in fact import substitution as these were previously 
imported from Japan, Indonesia, Taiwan and Korea. 
Now the Company is importing the basic raw materials 
only and through value addition is producing the 
highest quality products locally.

Since inception, the philosophy of the Company’s 
management is to grow on the strength of quality and 
reliability. To achieve this objective, it is maintaining 
a well equipped Research & Development Centre for 
standard maintenance, innovative improvements in 
its products and achieving economies in production 
techniques without compromising on standard and 
quality of products. Products and services offered by 
the Company are acknowledged by the customers 
as quality and reliable products and are the first 
preference of customers. 

The Company gives high priority to customers’ 
satisfaction, tries to maintain uninterrupted supply 
of its products and provides after sales services, 
technical support for trouble shooting. 

ALHAMDO LILLAH, the Company enjoys high 
prestige and reputation in the business community, 
banks, financial institutions and customers. It is also 
amongst major contributors to the national exchequer.
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Particulars	  UOM	 2021	 2020	 2019	  2018	

Profit and Loss Account	

Sales - Net	 Rs. in thousand	  7,554,429 	 5,914,249	 9,053,741	 6,044,111

Cost of sales 	 Rs. in thousand	 6,710,396	 5,520,731	 8,562,629	 5,680,917

Gross Profit 	 Rs. in thousand	 844,033	 393,518	 491,112	 363,194

Operating profit	 Rs. in thousand	 604,317	 341,768	 342,664	 234,689

Profit before tax 	 Rs. in thousand	 546,036	 108,801	 174,302	 115,822

Profit after tax 	 Rs. in thousand	  453,212 	 33,510	 54,975	 64,553

Income tax - current 	 Rs. in thousand	  113,317 	 88,714	 95,670	 60,479

- prior years 	 Rs. in thousand	 537	 453	 574	 266

- deferred 	 Rs. in thousand	 (21,030)	 (13,876)	 23,083	 (9,477)

Dividend

Cash dividend	 Rs. in thousand	 170,343	 -	 34,069	 34,069

Cash dividend rate	 Percentage	 50	 -	 10	 10

Balance Sheet

Share capital	 Rs. in thousand	 340,685	 340,685	 340,685	 340,685

Reserves 	 Rs. in thousand	 2,545,186	 2,078,613	 2,078,613	 2,060,942

Shareholders equity 	 Rs. in thousand	 2,885,871	 2,432,602	 2,419,298	 2,401,627

No. of ordinary shares 	 Numbers	 34,068,514	 34,068,514	 34,068,514	 34,068,514

Non-Current liabilities 	 Rs. in thousand	 431,851	 534,878	 539,687	 554,584

Current liabilities 	 Rs. in thousand	 3,183,831	 3,797,067	 3,055,610	 2,939,533

Property, Plant and Equipment 	 Rs. in thousand	 3,089,935	 3,082,353	 3,295,511	 3,201,449

Capital work-in-progress 	 Rs. in thousand	 147,706	 10,402	 64,020	 234,019

Long term investments/loans/deposits 	 Rs. in thousand	 4,281	 4,281	 4,396	 4,396

Current assets 	 Rs. in thousand	 2,805,337	 3,110,413	 2,252,188	 2,252,399

Net current assets 	 Rs. in thousand	 (378,494)	 (686,544)	 (803,422)	 (687,134)

Total liabilities 	 Rs. in thousand	 6,501,553	 6,764,547	 6,014,595	 5,895,744

Total Assets 	 Rs. in thousand	 6,501,553	 6,764,547	 6,014,595	 5,895,744

Ratio Analysis

Gross profit 	 Percentage	 11.17	 6.65	 5.42	 6.01

Net profit 	 Percentage	 6.00	 0.57	 0.61	 1.07

Inventory turnover 	 Times	 8	 7	 10	 7

Cash dividend per share 	 Rupees	 5	 -	 1	 1

Debt : equity ratio		  0 : 100	 4 : 96	 4 : 96	 6 : 94

Break-up value per share 	 Rupees	 84.71	 71.40	 71.01	 70.49

Market value per share at the end of the year	 Rupees	 34.00	 13.20	 27.55	 29.50

Production volume

Production capacity 	 M. Tons	 22,100	 22,100	 22,100	 22,100

Production achieved 	 M. Tons	 37,579	 26,493	 38,495	 31,578

Capacity utilization 	 Percentage	 170	 120	 174	 143

Employees 	 Numbers	 1,389	  1,344 	 1,468	 1,323

Financial Highlights
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	 2017	 2016	 2015	 2014

	

	5,025,401	 4,890,041	 4,841,940	 5,952,659

	4,887,698	 4,969,175	 4,982,459	 6,219,222

	 137,703	 (79,134)	 (140,519)	 (266,563)

	 (9,384)	 (135,807)	 (140,519)	 (361,421)

	 (123,064)	 (270,919)	 (401,098)	 (479,858)

	 (120,083)	 (333,478)	 (384,447)	 (403,284)

	 43,937	 48,900	 -	 -

	 (35,369)	 -	 -	 (30,459)

	 (11,549)	 13,659	 (16,651)	 (46,115)

			 

	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 -	 -	 -	 -

		

	

	 340,685	 340,685	 340,685	 340,685

	1,996,389	 1,735,615	 1,735,615	 1,735,615

	2,337,074	 1,032,799	 1,366,277	 1,462,789

	34,068,514 	 34,068,514	 34,068,514	 34,068,514

	 592,176	 649,133	 658,917	 516,553

	2,799,721	 2,704,858	 2,263,206	 2,075,711

	2,971,353	 1,637,969	 1,729,858	 1,630,402

	 7,972	 32,286	 17,945	 98,324

	 4,396	 4,361	 4,361	 4,361

	2,353,222	 2,344,460	 2,229,181	 2,420,290

	(446,499)	 (360,398)	 (34,025)	 344,579

	5,728,971	 4,386,790	 4,288,400	 4,055,053

	5,728,971	 4,386,790	 4,288,400	 4,055,053

		

		

	 2.74	 (1.62)	 (2.90)	 (4.47)

	 (2.39)	 (6.82)	 (7.94)	 (6.77)

	 8	 8	 6	 7

	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 7 : 93	 19 : 81	 17 : 83	 9 : 91

	 68.60	 30.32	 40.03	 42.94

	 19.25	 8.98	 12.00	 17.10

	

	 22,100	 22,100	 22,100	 22,100

	 31,181	 31,951	 26,859	 28,491

	 141	 145	 121	 129

	 1,230	 1,198	 1,251	 968
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5. The Board reviewed, discussed and approved 
business strategy, plan, budgets and financial 
statements and other reports including internal 
audit reports. It received clear agendas and 
supporting written material in sufficient time prior 
to board and committee meetings. The Board 
met frequently enough during the year.

6. The Board members offer a diverse mix of 
independent and non-executive directors 
including female director in compliance with 
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

Furthermore, on behalf of the Board, I would like 
to express my sincere gratitude to the Company’s 
stakeholders for their continued support and appreciate 
the commitment and valuable services rendered by the 
employees of the Company. I also express my thanks 
to the Government for favorable industrial-policies 
and to our Banks for their confidence in Company 
management.

Nooruddin Feerasta
Chairman

Lahore: 21 September 2021

Chairman’s Review
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased 
to present to you the Annual Report and financial 
statements of Rupali Polyester Limited for the year 
ended 30 June 2021.   The Company’s performance 
for the year under review remained par-excellent. Also, 
since its inception the Company has been steadily 
growing, expanding its operational capabilities and 
enhancing its shareholders’ value. The FY 2019-20 
faced unprecedented challenges due to COVID-19. 
The FY 2020-21 registered historic economic recovery. 
With great pleasure, I announce that Rupali Polyester 
Limited has consistently maintained its operational 
performance in current year. In FY 2020-21, the 
Company’s net turnover showed a growth of 28 % at 
PKR 7,554 million with operating profit growing 208% 
at PKR 604 million compared to PKR 196 million in 
the previous year. Company’s results have been 
presented in greater detail in the annual report.  The 
Company has a crucial role in the country’s economic 
prosperity, not only as job opportunity providers but 
also through its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
and good corporate governance. The Company 
adheres to strong health, safety, environmental and 
security principles. Our team of professionals is 
well-versed with the market dynamics and strives for 
growth momentum. Rupali Polyester Limited functions 
in the best corporate governance regime with very 
strong internal operational and financial controls. Our 
Board Members largely contribute their professional 
acumen and provide guidance and oversight while 
reviewing and approving Company policies for which I 
place on record my special thanks to them. Their role 
always proves highly instrumental in achieving the 
Company’s mission and goals.

Primarily the policy framework and guidelines of the 
Board are implemented by the Company as under:

1.	 The Company has well thought out vision, 
mission and values. The Board revisited the 
vision and mission statements.

2.  The Board set annual targets for the Management 
in all key performance areas.

3.  The Board provided direction and oversight on 
the Company’s business activities.

4.  The Board put in place a transparent and robust 
system of governance under all applicable 
laws and more specifically under the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019. 
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to 
welcome you to the forty-first annual general meeting 
and present the annual report and the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 
June 2021 together with the auditors’ report.  The 
financial highlights of the Company for FY 2020-21 
are given below:

Financial Results:
				    Rupees in thousand
Profit before taxation	 546,036
Taxation	 (92,824)
Profit after taxation	 453,212
	 Rupees
Earnings per share – basic and diluted  	 13.30

Dividend 
Your Directors recommend for your approval, final 
dividend of 50% (Rs.5.00 per share of Rs.10 each), 
subject to tax and zakat (where applicable), for the 
year ended 30 June 2021. 

Overview
It will give satisfaction to the valued shareholders 
to see that the Company has achieved a sizeable 
revenue growth in interim and final financial results 
of FY 2021. However, with the revenue increase, the 
cost of goods sold also increased mainly because of 
escalated prices of raw materials and energy. These 
two components form the major segments of the cost 
of production which constitute more than 90 percent of 
the cost of goods sold.  Pak rupee instability against 
basket of major foreign currencies also contributed 
to increased cost of goods sold. During the year, 
production and operational performance improved 
with the help of continuous supply of energy.

The economic contraction in first half of FY 2020-
21 was very challenging due to sequential impact of 
COVID - 19 lockdown at end of FY 2019-20.  However, 
business activities returned to normal from second 
half of the year and the Company witnessed gradual 
recovery in the domestic demand to pre-COVID levels 
in all its business segments. During the year under 
review, despite the unprecedented situation in which 
the entire world was engulfed by COVID-19, the 
Company adapted to the new normal and continued 
seamless buying and selling commitments with 
suppliers and customers.

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

Despite many challenges, Pakistan’s economy is 
moving progressively on sustainable growth path 
because of the various supportive measures taken by 
the government during the year.  The macroeconomic 
imbalances faced due to COVID-19 slowed down the 
pace of economic growth. However, the Government 
introduced several important monetary and fiscal 
measures, smart lockdowns, rapid vaccination 
programs etc. to combat the COVID impact. The 
industrial sector has witnessed a remarkable 
turnaround largely because of accommodative policies 
by the government in the form of industrial support 
packages and relief to export-oriented industries 
through electricity and gas subsidized tariffs. While the 
economy made an encouraging recovery during FY 
2021, there are still certain vulnerabilities like dumped 
imports, continually rising raw material and other input 
prices, inflation, Pak rupee depreciation, high utility 
prices, and a shortage of power that increase financial 
burden of businesses.

Domestic Polyester Industry
Polyester Filament Yarn (PFY) is the basic raw material 
for the weaving, knitting, and hosiery industries while 
Polyester Staple Fiber (PSF) is the basic raw material 
for spinning. These domestic industries need protection 
in the shape of anti-dumping duties on imported PFY 
and PSF to curb dumped imports of PFY and PSF. The 
weaving, knitting, and hosiery industries are essential 
to clothe our growing local population and if we rely on 
imported PFY, it will further deplete the nation’s scarce 
USD reserves. The elimination of 2.5% Regulatory 
Duty and 1% Additional Customs Duty on imported 
PFY will amplify direct injury to the local industry by 
encouraging imports while discouraging the domestic 
capacity expansion of PFY production.

Evasion of Anti-dumping Duty - Failure to collect 
government revenue and protect Domestic 
Polyester Filament Yarn industry against dumping
Importers of polyester filament yarn have excessively 
evaded anti-dumping duties (ADDs) in billions of PKR 
which has not been collected from the importers/
traders of polyester filament yarn consecutively for 
four years, despite dismissal of their bogus petitions 
by the High Courts. This not only causes loss of 
revenue to the government but also inflicts grave injury 
to the domestic polyester filament yarn manufacturing 
industry. 
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The National Tariff Commission (NTC), after a 
dumping investigation which found an injury in excess 
of 25% to domestic producers of Polyester Filament 
Yarn, had notified ADDs against the dumped imports 
of PFY from China and Malaysia at the rate of 3.25% 
to 11.35% (average 7%) in 2017. Since then, the 
importers of PFY have made it a regular practice to 
get stay orders from Lahore High Court (Rawalpindi 
Bench) and when that petition/stay order was 
dismissed, they filed the same petition and got stay 
order from another bench of the Lahore High Court 
without disclosing the fact of dismissal of their petition 
by Rawalpindi Bench. In this fashion, they have gone 
from one High Court to another (viz. Sindh High Court, 
Lahore High Court (Rawalpindi Bench), Lahore High 
Court (Multan Bench), Peshawar High Court and 
obtained stay orders on frivolous grounds against the 
imposition of ADDs on imported PFY. Thus, they have 
been getting their imported consignments cleared 
without submitting any securities and ultimately 
without payment of ADDs on their yearly imports since 
past four years.  

The responsibility of protecting the local polyester 
filament yarn producers from dumping and collecting 
the notified anti-dumping duty or the security for such 
payment in case of stay orders lies primarily with the 
National Tariff Commission on the custom clearance of 
the imported consignments. The NTC has the records 

that the same importers continue to obtain stay from 
different Courts. As such, despite the officially notified 
injury and notified anti-dumping duties, the NTC 
could not effectively protect the domestic industry 
from the menace of dumped imports. The domestic 
PFY industry has lost four years of protection from 
dumping due to the above failure. It is important that 
the NTC continue its efforts to ensure protection to the 
domestic industry from dumping by effective collection 
of notified dumping duties in the future.

The domestic industry has already undertaken 
capacity expansion and invested sizable capital with 
plans to undertake further expansion. The industry has 
the potential to provide import substitution of roughly 
US$350 million/year thus saving the foreign exchange 
of the country while providing local direct and indirect 
employment. The future capex investment plans of the 
domestic industry is dependent on the NTC effectively 
implementing the notified dumping duties and the 
government following through on its commitment to 
re-impose Regulatory Duty on PFY and not changing 
the current tariff structure (duties/additional custom 
duties). 

Anti-Dumping Duty on Import of Polyester Staple 
Fiber (PSF)
Consequent to the investigation and determination 
that dumped imports are causing injury to domestic 
industry, NTC imposed definitive anti-dumping duties 
(ADD) on imports of PSF (not exceeding 2.0 denier 
and excluding colored and regenerated PSF) from 
China ranging from 2.82% to 11.51% for a period of 
five years effective from 2 October 2015.

Before the expiry of ADD on PSF in October 2020, 
National Tariff Commission initiated on 17 August 
2020 the sunset review of imposed ADD on PSF on 
the application of the major domestic PSF producers 
to assess the continuation or recurrence of dumping 
and injury to the domestic industry if ADD is removed.

APTMA and Chinese Exporters have submitted 
their representations before the NTC claiming that 
circumstances have changed and ADD should be 
removed. The changed circumstances cited by them 
are (i) reduction in cost of raw materials (ii) decrease 
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in international prices of crude / POL products (iii) 
change in product type being exported from China 
(iv) depreciation of Pak Rupee (v) reduction in GDP 
growth rate of Pakistan and (vi) economic slowdown 
due to COVID-19.

In initial debriefing, NTC has observed that changes 
in circumstances as cited by APTMA and Chinese 
Exporters hold no ground and as such it is continuing 
its’ review of likely recurrence or continuation of injury 
to the domestic industry.

NTC has also initiated an anti-dumping investigation 
on 6 February 2021 against dumped imports of PSF 
from Chinese Taipei, Indonesia and Thailand and 
made a preliminary determination on 2 August 2021, 
stating that injury to domestic PSF industry has been 
caused by the dumped imports. It is hoped that in final 
review, NTC will consider imposing / continuing the 
anti-dumping duty on PSF.

PFY and PSF Market Condition
The PFY market remained volatile during the past few 
years owing to multiple factors, mainly the taxation 
structure, mandatory condition for registration of the 
unregistered traders and retailers, stiff competition 
with dumped imports, and demand-supply imbalances. 
PSF market also suffered from COVID-19 impacts 
as the country went into total lockdown and all 
downstream units for closed for some time. However, 
from Q1 of current year, the demand of PSF made 
a strong return and remained largely stable. The 
markets started reverting to normal momentum in the 
beginning of Q3 of 2020-21. Domestic PSF and PFY 

increased due to shortage of cotton in the country and 
decreased imports of dumped products due to logistic 
problems such as unavailability of vessels. Till June 
2021, the growth trend remained strong and sales 
revenues contributed an increase in profits for the FY 
2020-21 as compared to preceding FY. It is expected 
that the results will further improve in coming periods 
provided the existing tariffs of gas and electricity 
and anti-dumping duties on imported PFY are intact 
and evasion of ADD by importers in any form is not 
allowed.

Energy Tariff for Export-oriented Sectors
The availability of energy at regionally competitive 
prices was especially required in the COVID-19 
scenario to sustain exports and the government 
continued concessional electricity rate of US cents 9 
per kWh all-inclusive and the RLNG at $6.5/MMBTU 
all-inclusive to export oriented sectors during financial 
year 2020-21. Also it was stressed to rationalize 
usage of energy inputs and the audit of such use.  
This concession has reduced our cost of production, 
enabling us to have a better chance to compete with 
imported PFY which is produced in countries where 
subsidized electricity is the norm. It is important that 
the concessional electricity and gas tariffs continue for 
at least another five years.

Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)
In light of the Supreme Court of Pakistan Order dated 
13 August 2020, we made a provision in the financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 and also 
disclosed necessary notes under Contingencies and 
Commitments in the financial statements. We paid 
GIDC instalments for the period starting from May 
2015 up till July 2020.  However, Rupali Polyester 
Limited, along with other consumers have recently filed 
Suit No. 1556 of 2021 against GIDC arrears before the 
Sindh High Court and the said court granted stay on 
16 July 2021, referring the Supreme Court verdict dated 
13 August 2020 that the Cess under GIDC Act, 2015 
has been levied only on those consumers of natural 
gas who on account of their industrial or commercial 
dealings passed on its burden to their customers 
/ clients and we did not pass on such burden to our 
customers / clients.  
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Tariff rationalization
Under directions of the Tariff Policy Board, National 
Tariff Commission (NTC) in November 2020 has 
initiated a study of the tariff rationalization of textile 
related value chains with the main purpose to improve 
competitiveness of domestic industry and to increase 
exports of textile industry.   It is imperative to promote 
industrialization and exports which primarily has 
a leverage with tariffs of NTC.  Tariff should not be 
disturbed where cascading duty structure exists as 
all Sectors/stages within that chain require 5% to 6% 
differentials for each stage. 

PFY as import substitution
We have been projecting since past many years 
in our reports to shareholders that Synthetic textile 
sector based on Polyester Filament Yarn needs to be 
developed and protected for import substitution and to 
cater to the clothing needs of the 220 million people 
of Pakistan. Contrary to popular belief, Polyester 
Filament Yarn sector is not so critical for value added 
textile exports as they only constitute 10% of world 
made up exports vs 72% for cotton. As such, current 
import tariff should be maintained as well as a 5% 
Regulatory Duty on all 5 HS Codes of PFY (i.e.5402-
3300, 5402.4600, 5402.4700, 5402.5200, 5402.6200) 
be restored. This will assist in continuing the 
momentum of growth for the domestic PFY industry 
with expansion plans of US$ 125 million to recapture 
its share of domestic consumption from 33% in the 
year 2017 to over 75% in 2026. This will also reduce 
the import bill as PFY imports will be decrease from 
146,000 tons to just 56,000 tons/year. Moreover 
import duty on POY should not be reduced as it 
would translate to encouraging circumvention of Anti-
dumping duties on PFY as importers can clear DTY in 
the name of POY. The 5% Regulatory Duty needs to be 
restored to compensate for the delay in Anti-dumping 
duties as explained in following paragraphs and the 
low level of Anti-dumping duty vs injury margin.

During the anti-dumping investigation, NTC determined 
25% injury margin for the domestic PFY industry. 
However, anti-dumping duties (which should have 
been at least 10%), were imposed at a meager 3.25% 
to 4.9% on three big Chinese producers. Anti-dumping 

duties imposed by NTC are very low as compared 
to anti-dumping/countervailing duties imposed by 
Turkey ($268-$351/ton), India ($256-$547/ton) and 
USA (32%-460%) against same suppliers of dumped/
subsidized PFY imports from China.

It is an assertion of PYMA that the domestic PFY 
industry is not producing specialized yarns.  This is 
totally false and is tantamount to under rating the 
capabilities of domestic industry.  The NTC’s study 
verified the domestic industry’s manufacturing facilities 
and production records that the local PFY industry is 
producing and has the capability to produce all types 
and variants of specialized PFY including colored 
yarns. To finance further capex with the aim to promote 
domestic PFY for import substitution, this industry 
needs support by way of maintaining consistent 
11% import tariff and 5% Regulatory Duty at least 
for the next five years.  Regulatory Duty on imported 
Polyester Filament Yarn (PFY) was abolished in 
2019 and again levied @ 2.5% in 2020, but has been 
totally eliminated through a subsequent amendment 
in Finance Act 2021.  This has made it very difficult 
for the domestic manufacturers to compete with the 
imported PFY coming in at dumped rates.

Economic Review
FY21 started on a positive note for Pakistan’s 
economy, with recovery driven particularly by growth 
in large-scale manufacturing, construction and 
services industries. Several indicators depicted strong 
year-on-year growth in most sectors.  During the first 
half of FY21 the recovery was fragile.  Moreover, with 
increased community mobility, private consumption 
strengthened, aided by record official remittance 
inflows. On the production side, crop production was 
relatively weak in the first six months of FY21, as cotton 
production was adversely affected by heavy monsoon 
floods. Following the phased lifting of lockdown 
measures from May 2020 onwards, industrial activity 
recovered, with Large Scale Manufacturing and 
business confidence indexes exceeding pre-COVID 
levels in December 2020. As a result, the majority of 
the informal workers affected by the crisis were able 
to return to work. 
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Exports are projected to grow from FY22 onwards, as 
external conditions become more conducive and tariff 
reforms gain traction, but imports are also expected 
to increase in line with stronger domestic activity and 
higher oil prices.

Major risks to the outlook include the possibility of 
new waves of COVID-19 infections, the emergence 
of new vaccine-resistant strains, and difficulties in 
mass vaccinations. In addition, more delays in the 
implementation of critical structural reforms could lead 
to further fiscal and macroeconomic imbalances.

The economy posted a strong expansion in fiscal 
year 2021 (July 2020–June 2021), due to rebounding 
domestic demand and healthier export growth. The 
conditions in FY 2022 seem to be subdued in the first 
quarter as the loosening of lockdown restrictions in 
late June resulted in an increase in new COVID-19 
cases. Consequently, some key economic regions 
implemented partial lockdowns in July and August, 
which may weigh down on performance. 

The wave of optimism that swept through global 
markets led to accelerated growth in commodity 
prices, including the price of oil. As a result of growth 
in demand and the artificial oil market deficit created 
by OPEC+ countries, the price of Brent oil in the 
third quarter of 2021 entered a stable range of 70-75 
USD/bbl. Nevertheless, as there were no changes 
in fundamental price formation factors, the long term 
forecast was unadjusted and remained at around
78 USD/bbl in 2021.  

It is an undeniable fact that the textile industry has 
proved to be one of the most important sectors of 
Pakistan as being a big contributor to the country’s 
GDP, exports as well as employment. Therefore, this 
sector should be promoted while formulating long-
term economic policies.

COVID-19 impact on Businesses and Human 
Resources
COVID-19 severely devastated businesses globally. 
Pakistan’s businesses and economy also witnessed 
massive disruption, especially to industrial operations. 
Textile sector including polyester chain has a 

significant contribution in the country’s economy and 
employment of large workforce.  Still it is largely a risky 
situation as the coronavirus cases are on the rise.  

Necessary disclosures regarding impacts of COVID-19 
as required vide SECP Circular No. 26 of 2020 dated 
31 August 2020 have been given in the annexed 
audited financial statements for the year ended 30 
June 2021.

COVID-19 Measures
Since the start of COVID-19, the government’s 
initiatives and timely measures against COVID-19 
are very commendable.  The way of administering 
large scale vaccinations to the public is proving very 
effective. We also appreciate the government’s efforts 
for the mobile vaccination of our employees at our 
plant and the constant support in covid testing both 
at our plant and offices. The Company is cognizant 
of its responsibilities and is monitoring and reviewing 
the situation regularly. The Company has also 
implemented necessary controls to minimize the 
impact of COVID-19 on employees and their families.  
The vaccination of Company employees was timely 
completed and our campaign continues to encourage 
employees to get their family members vaccinated as 
early as possible for the sake of their own health and 
safety.
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Since last year, the company has developed 
comprehensive pandemic management guidelines 
and business continuity plans. It has implemented 
controls at all locations to control the impact of the 
pandemic. Mandatory SOPs for all employees and 
service providers, include wearing of facemasks and 
maintenance of social distance at all times when they 
are on Company premises. Other controls include active 
health screening, mandatory temperature checks, use 
of respiratory and hand hygiene PPEs, deep cleaning 
and disinfection of premises and vehicles, and limiting 
face to face meetings. An aggressive communication 
strategy has been designed and implemented under 
the banner of the Company’s wellness program. These 
timely and practical actions reduced risks to the health 
and safety of employees and improved morale of the 
employees to work comfortably and observe SOPs.

Credit Mobilization
During the year your Company arranged / renewed 
working capital facilities (both fund based and non-
fund based limits) and completed documentation 
formalities with participation from six banks including 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited.

Our performance is closely tied to the retail and micro 
textile manufacturers and any decline in demand 
from our end-consumers causes a decrease in our 
revenues. Furthermore, inflationary pressures and 
higher fuel and utilities costs constitute big components 
in our manufacturing cost. The cost of the Company’s 
short-term borrowings depend upon fluctuations 
in KIBOR, which exposes the cash flows to interest 
rate risk. With no change in the mark-up rates on 
bank borrowings since last year and the improved 
cash flows, the Company’s financial charges have 
decreased substantially in FY 2020-21.

The Government has been taking steps to improve 
economic imbalances however the exchange rate 
has continued to depreciate. The rapid currency 
depreciation has increased the landed cost of our 
raw materials and poses huge risks as the entire cost 
increase cannot be passed on to end consumers. 

Taxation structure
The Government is keen to facilitate the local industries 
especially in the export-oriented sectors, in order to 
increase exports and earn foreign exchange.  Many 
initiatives have been taken by the Federal Government 
and incentives have been given to the exporters as 
well as the export-oriented industries.

The incentives given, to the former zero rated 
sectors, by the Federal Government in the shape of 
concessionary tariff of gas and electricity continued 
throughout the year and the reduced rate of income 
tax withholding under Clause 45A of Part IV of the 
2nd Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
also remained operative, resulting in a very positive 
impact on the former zero rated industry as well as 
the ultimate export industry. Through Finance Act, 
2020, the Federal Government imposed income tax 
at import stage on the basis of classification made in 
the 12th Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 
however, the reduced rate of collection of tax at import 
stage @1%, under section 148 of the Ordinance, 
remained intact in the case of the former zero rated 
sectors.

Raw material prices
Raw material prices showed rising trend since start 
of the financial year 2020-21.  In July 2020, PTA price 
was US$ 490 per M. Ton and in June 2021, the price 
was US$ 700 per M. Ton showing a sharp increase of 
43%.  Similarly, MEG price in July 2020 was US$445 
per M. Ton and in June 2021, the prices was US$660 
per M. Ton showing an unprecedented increase of 
48%.  At the time of writing this report, PTA price is 
US$ 795 per M. Ton and MEG price US$ 720 per M. 
Ton.

During the FY 2020-21, average Crude oil prices 
increased by 33% to US$ 69.29 per barrel (from US$ 
52.26 per barrel). PX prices also soared by 49% to 
US$ 1,050 per MT (from US$ 706 per MT). In line with 
Crude Oil and PX prices, PTA prices correspondingly 
increased.  

Fuel prices followed an upward trend whereby a hike 
of 9% and 10% was observed in Gas/RLNG, and 
furnace oil, respectively. 



Annual Report 2021 19

OEKOTEX Certification
Imported raw materials, advanced production 
equipment, and professional and technical talents 
contribute to produce high quality products. Our 
products (PFY) have passed the human-ecological 
requirements for OEKO-TEX® STANDARD 100 and 
we have received the renewed certification.

Sales Revenue and Profits 
Sales revenue of the Company for FY 2020-21 
registered both volumetric and monetary increases. 
Our marketing campaign largely contributed to boost 
sales. Sales revenues for the year ended 30 June 
2021 increased by 28% to Rs.7,554.43 million from 
Rs. 5,914.25 million in the FY 2019-20. Gross profit 
increased to Rs.844.03 million from gross profit of 
Rs.393.52 million in FY 2019-20. Operating profit 
was Rs.604.32 million against operating profit of 
Rs.196.15 million in the previous year. Finance cost 
decreased significantly to Rs.139.09 million from 
Rs.232.97 million mainly because of lower mark-up 
rates and improved cash flow position. Profit before 
tax amounted to Rs.546.04 million against profit 

before tax of Rs.108.80 million in FY 2020. After tax 
profit is Rs.453.21 against Rs.33.51 million in FY 
2019-20.

Future Outlook
Considering the growing demand of PSF and PFY 
in the domestic market as well as requirement as 
feedstock in textile export, your Company is planning to 
increase both its POY and DTY production capacities 
by adding new machines of latest technology. For any 
expansion and capital investment, steady and long-
term economic policies are essential for the protection 
of this industry and we hope the government 
recognizes its contribution to both employment and 
the overall GDP. PFY industry should be developed 
as a huge source of import substitution to save the 
country’s huge foreign exchange spend on import 
of PFY at dumped prices. We hope that positive 
enabling circumstances like protection through anti-
dumping duties on glut of PFY dumping, policy 
measures against Pak rupee depreciation, and 
energy supply at concessional rates, will remain so 
that we can increase the capacity to a level where 
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The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for 
overseeing the risk management process.  It ensures 
that decision-making is aligned with the Company’s 
strategies and risk appetite. The Board receives 
regular updates on the key risks of the Company both 
in operational and financial areas.

Risk management process includes periodic review of 
all risks areas by the Chief Executive Officer and the 
senior management who are responsible for the day-
to-day risk management functions.

The Board advises the Management to further 
strengthen the overall risk management framework 
through a robust mechanism to estimate the potential 
impact of extreme events on the Company’s earnings, 
balance sheet, capital and liquidity.

The Board is overseeing the Company’s risk 
management process and controls and reviews the 
Company’s risk appetite and strategy relating to key 
risks, including credit risk, liquidity and funding risk, 
market risk, product risk and reputational risk, as 
well as the guidelines, policies and processes for 
monitoring and mitigating such risks.

The Company has a Risk Management Policy 
in accordance with the provisions of the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019. It establishes various levels of 
accountability and oversight within the Company, 
while vesting identified managers with responsibility 
for each significant risk.

The Board takes responsibility for the overall process 
of risk management in the organization. Through 
Enterprise Risk Management Program, business 
units and corporate functions address risks with an 
institutionalized approach aligned to the Company’s 
objectives. This is facilitated by our internal audit 
as well. The business risk is managed through 
cross-functional involvement and communication 
across business segments. The results of the risk 
assessment are thoroughly discussed with the Senior 
Management for necessary pre-emptive measures.

the local manufacturers would be able to meet more 
than eighty percent of the local demand requirement. 
Additionally, your Company has also embarked on an 
aggressive BMR plan where it will be replacing some 
of its obsolete ancillary machinery over the next 12 
months to benefit from cost savings resulting from 
higher operational efficiencies. 

The Company’s branded products have a 
countrywide reach and supply to majority of central 
Punjab consumers through an expansive Punjab 
distribution network, focused on delivering a distinct 
customer experience. Currently we have a network 
of distributors in various cities retailing our products 
and as our production capacity grows, we are laying 
the infrastructure to take a more active role in directly 
selling to the market.

Business Development
Overall markets were dampened due to trade 
recession.  The spread of pandemic lockdowns were 
enforced and the worldwide business activities were 
halted.

Despite economic recovery, the emergence of 
COVID-19 variants, rising debt and inflation, Pak 
Rupee depreciation, bullish trend of commodity 
prices, record surge in sea freights, lack of mechanism 
for recovery of anti-dumping duties, and unstable 
geopolitical tensions will continue as challenges. 
Being optimistic, as the gradual process of revival 
towards normalcy is being seen, it is expected that 
future period will also close much better.

Risk Management
The Company is exposed to inherent uncertainties 
owing to the sectorial factors. A key factor in determining 
a company’s capacity to create sustainable value is 
the risks that the company is willing to take at strategic 
and operational levels and its ability to manage them 
effectively. Many risks exist in a Company’s operating 
environment and they emerge on a regular basis. 
The Company’s Risk Management process focuses 
on ensuring that these risks are identified on a timely 
basis and addressed. 
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Board of Directors
Current members on the Board of Directors were 
elected on 27 October 2018 and will end their term 
this year.  The present composition is in conformity 
with the provisions of the Listed Companies (Code 
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The 
Company shall welcome minority shareholders 
nomination and shall extend all facilitation while 
issuing notice under the Companies Act, 2017 in case 
such a nomination received.  Election of Directors for 
next term of three years will be held in the forthcoming 
annual general meeting. The number of Directors 
fixed by the Board is eight for the next term.

The Board determines the appropriate characteristics, 
skills and experience for the Board as a whole and 
its individual members with the objective of having 
a Board with diverse backgrounds and experience 
in business, government, education and public 
service. Characteristics expected of all Directors 
include independence, integrity, high personal and 
professional ethics, sound business judgment, 
ability to participate constructively in deliberations 
and willingness to exercise authority in a collective 
manner. 

The remuneration policy of Non-Executive Directors 
including Independent Directors shall be reviewed 
and determined by the new Board.

Remuneration of Directors:
Following are the aggregate amounts of salary / 
fee and other perquisites of the present Board for
FY-2020-21:

 Directors’ category	 Number	 Aggregate amount	 Other perquisites
		   of salary and fee

 Executive Directors:	 Two:	 NIL	 Chief Executive
 CEO	 (Chief		  Officer is drawing 	
 (Mr. Nooruddin	 Executive		  no salary since his 	
 Feerasta)	 and one		  first appointment 	
	 Executive		  except company car.	
 	 Director)
 Executive Director			 

 (Mr. Abdul Hayee)

 upto 19 August 2020.

 Non-executive

 Director since

 20 August 2020		  Rs.1.346 million	 Nil

 Independent Directors	 Two	 Nil	

 Non-Executive	 Five	 Nil	
 Directors (including 
 Mr. Abdul Hayee)

*Mr. Abdul Hayee retired from Company Service 
w.e.f.20 August 2020 thus has became non-executive 
director thereafter.

The Board periodically reviews the remuneration 
policy and a well-defined remuneration policy is in 
place.

Auditors
M/s. Qavi & Co., Chartered Accountants resigned 
on 26 April 2021, the reasons stated by their Senior 
Partner:

-	 That he is suffering from back bones and waist 
pain and undergoing treatment that does not allow/
warrant him travelling that could land him into 
further damage/stress.

-	 That due to confronting resource shortage/
infrastructure availability at the Lahore Office.

-	 That he is also advised by the doctors not to travel 
to Lahore with present ill health as COVID-19 
pandemic is severe there and may cause harm to 
him.

Casual vacancy was filled by the Board u/s 246(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2017 upon the recommendation 
of the Board’s Audit Committee by appointing M/s 
Iqbal Yasir & Co. Chartered Accountants on 20 May 
2021 for the remaining tenure of the year 2020-21 until 
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

M/s. Iqbal Yasir & Co. Chartered Accountants shall 
retire and being eligible have offered themselves 
for re-appointment as external auditor for the years 
2021-22. The Board has received recommendations 
from its Audit Committee for appointment of M/s. 
Iqbal Yasir & Co., Chartered Accountants as 
Auditors of the Company for the year 2021-22.

Pattern of Shareholding
A statement showing the pattern of shareholding in the 
Company as at 30 June 2021 appears on Page 95.

Other Disclosures
The Company’s performance has been sufficiently 
elaborated in earlier parts of this Report of the 
Directors, however, the specific disclosure of some 
mandatory constituents are explained hereunder 
in terms of the provisions of Section 227 of the 
Companies Act, 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Rule 
Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited:
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-	 During the financial year ended 30 June 2021, 
following were the directors of the Company.  Total 
number of Directors: 8 (7 male and one female).

            Category		       Names

  a)  Independent Director	 Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany
	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani

  b)  Non-Executive Directors	 Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
	 Mrs. Amyna Feerasta
	 Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta 
	 Mr. Abdul Hayee

  c)  Executive Directors	 Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta

Committees of the Board

Audit Committee	

1.	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani	 Chairman	 (Independent Director)

2.	 Mr. Muhammad	 Member	 (Non-Executive Director)
	 Rashid Zahir

3.	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member	 (Non-Executive Director)

H.R and Remuneration Committee

1.	 Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany	 Chairman	 (Independent Director) 

2.	 Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta	 Member	 (Chief Executive Officer) 

3.	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member	 (Non-Executive Director) 

-	 The principal activities of the Company remained 
consistent as manufacture and sale of synthetic 
products.  There were several developments during 
the year under review including infrastructural 
development and refurbishment of manufacturing 
lines with the aim of cost cutting. Strategic review 
was undertaken through monitoring of marketing 
trend for monthly production plans to ensure 
uninterrupted supply to meet the downstream 
demands.

-	 There has been no change in nature of the 
Company’s business.

-	 There has been no change in nature of the 
Company’s business.

-	 The external auditors have issued unqualified audit 
report for the year ended 30 June 2021.

-	 Rupali Polyester Limited is not a foreign company 
and has no holding or subsidiary company. 

-	 Pattern of shareholding as on 30 June 2021 is 
annexed.

-	 The earning per share at the year end was Rs. 13.30

-	 The factors contributed towards main achievements 
as well as the hindrances in growth during the year 
2020-21 have been elaborated in this Report.  
Several measures were taken during the year by 
the Company Management under guidance of the 
Board of Directors to serve as economic tools to 
make and keep the unit profitable.  Pursuant to 
revival of businesses which faced recession due 
to COVID-19, we are moving forward gradually 
towards recovery with positive response from 
downstream consumers. The top and bottom line 
results during the year under review have shown 
substantial growth despite COVID-19 variants.

-	 The Company’s historical debt repayments and 
servicing record is excellent and its Management 
never allowed a situation to arise that may cause 
default in repayment of debt.  Under the COVID 
relief announced by the State Bank of Pakistan last 
year, some LCs and mark-up payments deferred 
by commercial banks in conformity with the SBP’s 
guidelines, were paid by the Company well within 
the new due dates.

-	 The Company’s internal controls are strong. 
The Company has implemented sound systems 
and controls in all spheres of operational and 
commercial activities with check & balance for 
regular monitoring. The purchase procedures 
and SOPs are also sound and the checks and 
controls are ensured at every stage. This system 
is functioning smoothly and successfully with no 
element of delay in meeting requirements as per the 
delivery schedules. The SOPs of various activities 
are regularly reviewed and bottlenecks removed for 
improvements where required for smooth system 
functioning.  During COVID period, the Company 
has and is fully adhering to the proper SOPs.

-	 There has occurred no material changes and 
commitments materially affecting the financial 
position of the Company between the end of the 
financial year of the Company i.e. 30 June 2021 and 
the date of the report except your directors have 
recommended 50% final cash dividend. However, 
the results will be under pressure in coming periods 
by virtue of Pak Rupees devaluation against US 
Dollar.
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-	 The Company’s business that suffered setback in 
previous few years has now come out of the losses 
and is moving steadily towards revival and growth.  
The overall unfavorable market conditions include 
dumping of low-cost PSF, PFY and cloth from the 
regional countries. All favourable factors remaining 
positive, it will still take more time to off-set the 
COVID impact.

-	 The Company’s business operations have no 
adverse impact on environment. The outlets of 
wastewater, emissions, gases etc. are kept under 
the environmental protection parameters and 
procedures and controls.

-	 The Company fulfills its Corporate Social 
Responsibilities by way of donations to various 
deserving educational institutions and hospitals.

-	 There have been no significant and material orders 
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 
impacting the going concern status and the 
Company’s operations. 

Compliance wherever not made has been explained 
as required under CCG 2019.

Related Party Transactions
In compliance with Section 208 and 209 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and Related Parties Regulations, 
2018 the Company executes transactions with 
following associated companies, related parties in its 
ordinary course of business:

    - Rupafil Limited
    - Spintex Limited
    - Soneri Bank Limited
    - Rupali Nylon (Pvt.) Limited

The shareholders in its meeting held on 27 October 
2020 had given approval through special resolution for 
transactions to be consummated with related parties 
during the year 2020-21.  The Board of Directors has 
duly approved/ratified the transactions made in FY 
2020-21 with above related parties.

Disclosure Requirements as per Listing 
Regulations / Code of Corporate Governance 
Regulations 

Corporate Governance:
The Company is committed to maintain the highest 
standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to 
the Corporate Governance requirement set out by the 

SECP. The Company has also implemented several 
best governance practices. The report on Corporate 
Governance under PSX Listing Regulations forms 
an integral part of the Annual Report. The requisite 
certificate from the auditors of the Company confirming 
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance is attached to the Report on Corporate 
Governance.

Good Corporate Governance has always been the 
focal point of the Board of Directors of the Company. 
We are happy to report that your Company by the Grace 
of ALLAH, meets the standard set in the guidelines for 
good corporate governance and is in compliance with 
the relevant regulations. At Rupali Polyester Limited 
we ensure that we evolve and follow the corporate 
governance guidelines and best practices sincerely 
to not just boost long-term shareholder value, but 
to also respect minority rights. We consider it our 
inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate 
information regarding our financials and performance, 
as well as the leadership and governance of the 
Company. In accordance with the vision set by the 
Board, the Company aspires to be the global Polyester 
industry benchmark for value creation and corporate 
citizenship. 

The Company expects to realize its Vision by taking 
such actions as may be necessary in order to achieve 
its goals of value creation, safety, environment and 
people. The Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance 
of conditions of Corporate Governance are made part 
of the Annual Report. 

During the year, the Company took several initiatives 
in various aspects of sustainability. At the strategic 
level, the Company embarked on a scenario planning 
exercise to envision the future, looking at economic, 
regulatory and stakeholder scenarios in order to 
develop our next vision and action plans. In order to 
drive the various aspects of sustainability in a more 
focused way, the Company put together consolidated 
governance mechanisms with clear demarcation of 
roles between the Board, its Committees and the 
Management. During the year, the capital projects for 
environment have progressed significantly. Following 
specific statements are being given hereunder: 

The Company has initiated steps of energy 
conservation and continue taking measures to 
improve energy efficiency. Our environment research 
team in R&D has been working on projects to reduce 
the environmental impact of our operations while 
improving resource efficiency. We are happy to report 
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that the Company has gained a lot of improvement as 
a result of its efforts. 

Human Resource Management adopts key decisions 
not just with respect to Human Resource but 
businesses as a whole. It focuses on improving the 
way of life, work culture, employee engagement, 
productivity, effectiveness and efficiency. During the 
year, several employee centric policies were launched 
to cater to the needs of the work force and also to 
keep the Company up to date with external realities. 

Policies like adoption leave, physical and emotional 
well-being, and professional counseling services were 
launched in the interest of the employees’ changing 
needs. The Company initiated multiple actions to 
keep the workforce engaged. Actions are being 
taken to increase professional diversity, providing 
greater amenities for contractor workforce, improving 
employee skills and enhancing employee productivity. 
In addition, policies are being implemented to support 
affirmative action through training and enabling 
employment.   

Compliance wherever not made has been explained 
as required under CCG 2019.

We further state that:

•	 The Company has maintained its books of 
account as per statutory requirements. 

•	 The Company’s financial statements fully present 
state of affairs fairly, its results of operations, cash 
flows and changes in equity. 

•	 Appropriate accounting policies and applicable 
International Accounting Standards and 
International Financial Reporting Standards were 
applied in preparation of financial statements and 
accounting estimates are based on reasonable 
and prudent judgment and any departures 
there from have been adequately disclosed and 
explained.

•	 There is no inconsistency in these policies and 
no material departure from the best practices of 
corporate governance is allowed.

•	 These accounts have been prepared on going 
concern basis and the Management is satisfied 
regarding going concern status of the Company. 

•	 The system of internal controls of the Company 

is significantly sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored. 

•	 Plant operations remained normal throughout 
the year.  However, the dumped imports from 
China, Malaysia and Vietnam disturbed our sales 
targets which put adverse impact on our sales 
revenues. Provision of GIDC was made in light 
of the Order of the Honourable Supreme Court 
of Pakistan dated 13 August 2020. The reasons 
for increase in revenues, cost of goods sold and 
decrease in finance costs have been highlighted 
and explained.

•	 There is no statutory payment on account of taxes, 
duties, levies and charges outstanding other than 
those in normal business related transactions.

•	 Company is neither in default nor likely to default 
any loans, short-term borrowings or any sort of 
debt instruments.

Investment of Provident Fund
The value of investment in Provident Fund Trust 
Account inclusive of profit accrued:

		  (Rupees in thousand)
	 30 June 2021	          30 June 2020
	  (Unaudited) 		  (Audited)
	      22,025		    20,074
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Audit Committee Meetings and Attendance by 

each member
Total number of Audit Committee Meetings held 
during the year under review:			   4

Attendance by each Member:
1. Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani		 Chairman	 4
2. Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir 	 Member	 4
3. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member 	 4

H.R and Remuneration Committee Meetings and 
Attendance by each member
Total number of HR and Remuneration Committee 
Meetings held during the year under review:	 4

Attendance by each Member:
1. Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany 	 Chairman 	 4
2. Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta 	 Member	 4
3. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta 	 Member	 4 

Board Meetings held and Attendance by each 
Director
Total number of Board Meetings held during
the year under review:				    4	
	
Attendance by each Director:
1. Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta
    (Chief Executive Officer) 			   4

2. Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
    (Non-executive) 				    4

3. Mrs. Amyna Feerasta				 
    (Non-executive)				    4

4. Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani				 
    (Independent & Non-executive)		  4

5. Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany
    (Independent & Non-executive) 		  4

6. Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
    (Non-executive)				    4

7. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta
    (Non-executive) 				    4

8. Mr. Abdul Hayee
    (Non-Executive)				    4

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Your Company attaches high priority to its social 
responsibilities and is committed to the highest 
standards of corporate behavior.  The Company’s CSR 
responsibilities are fulfilled through selective monetary 
contributions in the areas of health care, education, 
environmental protection, water and sanitation, child 
welfare, infrastructure development and other welfare 
activities subject to availability of surplus funds.  Our 
CSR activities include contributions to hospitals and 
welfare programs engaged in assisting under-privileged 
patients, students and children of various special needs. 

Code of Conduct
As a part of continuous adherence to best practices of 
corporate governance, Rupali Polyester Limited believes 
in widely disseminating its values and ethics for strict 
adherence by all employees, contractors, suppliers and 
others associated with business of the Company. Our 
commitment to encouraging ethical and responsible 
practices is demonstrated by the fact that the Company 
had a comprehensive Code of Conduct in place well 
before the introduction of this requirement in 2002 and 
since then have been reviewed and updated. The Code 
of Conduct of the Company is reviewed periodically 
and we ensure compliance at all levels. Furthermore, 
upon joining the Company, all employees are required 
to read and understand the Code of Conduct for strict 
compliance, which demonstrates Company’s best 
corporate governance in practice.

Succession Planning
At Rupali Polyester Limited, there is a proper succession 
planning and is implemented evaluating the incumbents’ 
talent.  The focus is on capability building by encouraging 
internal lateral moves.

Individuals highlighted for succession are developed 
through stretched assignments and involvement through 
internal /external training, and on the job education.

Whistleblowing Policy
Rupali Polyester has a well-defined Whistleblowing 
Policy. Any cases where the Code of Conduct has 
been violated, and to help facilitate strict adherence to 
it, employees have access to a whistleblowing protocol. 
Through this program, any employee can confidentially 
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report suspected breach of ethics and Code of the Company by way of anonymity. Any complaints if received are 
thoroughly investigated to a logical end. The Board Audit Committee as well as the Board oversees this process.

Health, Safety and Environment
The Company is strongly committed towards all aspects of maintaining a safe and healthy environment, for our 
business operations as well as affiliated organizations.

The Company fully recognizes safety as a key component of operational excellence and gives vital importance to 
the training of employees and contractors. We also try to enhance safety awareness and actively incorporate best 
practices for the industries overall operational set-up.

Our commitment to environment, health and safety is manifested in our operational activities as no major accident 
was reported in the year 2021.

There was no reportable occupational illness from our employees or contracted manpower in 2021. Proper fumigation 
and treatment against viral spread is regularly carried out at plant site and offices.

Labor Management Relations
Like previous years, cordial relations were maintained between the Management and the labor force. We extend 
our appreciation for their dedication and hard work demonstrated at every level for the progress and growth of the 
Company. 

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements for FY 2020-21 prepared as per provisions of Companies Act, 2017 were approved and 
authorized for their issuance by the Board of Directors on 21 September 2021.

Approval of the Directors’ Report and Compliance Statement
The Board of Directors approved the Directors’ Report and statement of compliance on 
21 September 2021 and authorized their issuance.

A Note of Gratitude
The Directors express their appreciation for the cooperation provided by the Ministries of Finance, Revenue and 
Economic Affairs, Industries and Production, Communication, and Commerce and Textile. We would also like to 
convey our gratitude to the Federal Board of Revenue and Government of the Punjab for their cooperation. We 
appreciate the patronage and confidence placed in the Company by the Development Financial Institutions and 
commercial banks. We are thankful to our valued customers and expect growing business relationships with them. 
To our stakeholders, we are grateful for their faith and trust in the Company.  We place on record our appreciation 
of the contribution made by employees at all levels. Our resilience to meet challenges was made possible by their 
hard work, solidarity, co-operation and support.

On behalf of the Board

Nooruddin Feerasta									         Shehzad Feerasta
Chief Executive Officer									         Director

Lahore:
21 September 2021
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Notice is hereby given that the Forty First Annual 
General Meeting of Rupali Polyester Limited (“the 
Company”) will be held at Rupali House, 241-
242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, Lahore on 
Wednesday, 27 October 2021 at 10:30 a.m. (through 
Zoom and with compliance of quorum requirement) to 
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1)	 To confirm the minutes of Fortieth Annual 

General Meeting of the Company held on 27 
October 2020.

2)	 To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited 
Financial Statements of the Company together 
with the Directors and Auditors Reports thereon 
for the year ended 30 June 2021.

3)	 To approve payment of final cash dividend @ 
50% i.e. Rs.5.00 per share for the year ended 
30 June 2021 as recommended by the Board 
of Directors in its 112th meeting held on 21 
September 2021.

4)	 To elect eight (8) Directors of the Company as 
per the number fixed by the Board of Directors 
of the Company under Section 159(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2017 for a term of three (3) 
years commencing from 30 October 2021.

	 The following are the names of retiring Directors, 
who are eligible for re-election:

 1.  Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta
 2. Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
 3. Mrs. Amyna Feerasta	
 4. Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
 5. Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta
 6. Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani
 7. Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany
 8. Mr. Abdul Hayee

5)	 To appoint Auditors of the Company and to fix 
their remuneration. The retiring Auditors M/s. 
Iqbal Yasir & Company, Chartered Accountants 
being eligible have offered themselves for 
reappointment.

Special Business:
6)	 (a) To approve transactions conducted with 

associated companies (related parties) for 
the year ended 30 June 2021 by passing with 
or without modification the following special 
resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT the following transactions 
conducted with associated companies (related 
parties) for the year ended 30 June 2021 be and 
are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed:

 Name	              Description of Transaction	  Amount in Rs. ‘000

Purchase	     Sale	    Others
 Rupafil Limited       Sale/purchase of goods	   665,920	  71,180	        -

	              and services		    	   

 Rupali Nylon (Pvt.)  Purchase of goods	   		
 Limited.	                   and services		     2,647	            -                 -
 Spintex Limited         Sale/purchase of goods 	    3,478 	            -                 -

 Soneri Bank Limited   Profit on Bank deposits	           - 	          -	 3,420

	 (b) To authorize Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company to approve transactions with Related 
Parties for the year ending 30 June 2022 by 
passing the following special resolution with or 
without modification:

	 “RESOLVED THAT (b) To authorize Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company to approve 
transactions with Related Parties for the year 
ending 30 June 2022 by passing the following 
special resolution with or without modification:

	 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT these transactions 
shall be placed before the shareholders in 
the next general meeting for their ratification/
approval.”

Other Business
7)	 To transact such other ordinary business as 

may be placed before the meeting with the 
permission of the Chair.

			    	      By order of the Board

Lahore:			      S. Ghulam Shabbir Gilani
21 September 2021	     Company Secretary

Notes:

1)      Share Transfer Books
	 Share transfer books of the Company will remain 

closed from 22 October 2021 to 27 October 
2021 (both days inclusive).  Transfers received 
at the registered office or Share Registrar M/s. 
THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, 
Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A. Phase VII, 
Karachi-75500 before close of business on 
21 October 2021 will be treated in time for the 
purpose of above entitlement to the transferees.

Notice of Meeting
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2)	 Election of Directors
2.1	 In accordance with Section 159 (1) of the 

Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act”), the Board of 
Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 

	 21 September 2021 has fixed the number of 
Directors to be elected as eight (8) to be elected 
in the AGM.  The retiring Directors are eligible to 
offer themselves for re-election.

2.2	 Any person who seeks to contest the election 
to the office of a director, whether the retiring 
director or otherwise, shall file the following 
documents with the Company Secretary, at 
the Registered Office of the Company located 
at Rupali House, 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, 
Anand Road, Lahore, not later than 14 days 
before the date of AGM:

a.	 Notice of his / her intention to offer him / herself 
for the election to the Office of Director in terms 
of section 159(3) of the Act;

b.	 Consent to act as Director in Form-28 under 
Section 167 of the Act, as prescribed under the 
Companies (General  Provisions  and  Forms) 
Regulation, 2018;

c.	 A detailed profile along with his/her office 
address as required under  SRO 1196(1)2019 
dated 3 October 2019 issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP);

d.	 Declaration in respect of being compliant  
with the requirement of the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2019 and the eligibility criteria, as set out in 
Section 153 of the Act, to act as director or an 
independent director of a listed company;

e.	 A director must be holding qualification shares of 
the Company at the time of filing his / her consent 
to act as director. The aforesaid qualification 
shall not be applicable for instances mentioned 
in Section 153(i) of the Act;

f.	 Attested copy of valid CNIC and NTN; 

g.	 Independent directors will be elected through 
the process of election of directors in terms of 
Section 159 of the Act and he/she shall meet 
the criteria laid down in Section 166 of the 
Act, the Companies (Manner and Selection of 
Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018 and 
Guide Book on Corporate Governance and 

Frequently Asked Question dated 5 June 2020, 
accordingly the following additional documents 
are to be submitted by the candidates 
intending to contest election of directors  as an 
Independent Director:

•	 In case of Independent Director, a declaration 
of independence in terms of requirements of 
Section 166(2) of the Act read with Regulation 
6(3) of the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2019;

•	 Undertaking on non-judicial  stamp paper 
that he / she meets the requirements of 
sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 4 of the 
Companies (Manner and Selection of 
Independent Directors) Regulations, 2018;

Minority shareholders are encouraged to participate 
to elect director if the criteria as specified in law is 
met.

The final list of contesting directors will be circulated 
not later than seven days before the date of said 
meeting, in term of section 159 (4). Further, the 
website of the Company will be updated with the 
required information.

3)      Zoom Link
	 In line with the guidelines of the Securities 

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the 
Company will convene this AGM through 
Zoom link while ensuring compliance with 
the quorum requirements and request to the 
Members to consolidate their attendance 
and voting at the AGM through proxies.

	 The special arrangement for attending the AGM 
through electronic means will be as under:

a)	 AGM will be held through Zoom application.

b)	 Shareholders / Proxy holders interested in 
attending the AGM through Zoom are hereby 
requested to get themselves registered with 
the  Company Secretary  office by sending an 
e-mail with subject: “Registration  for AGM” at 

	 info@rupaligroup.com at least 48 hours before 
the AGM:

       Name of		  Folio 		
   Shareholders	 CNIC Number	 Number/CDC	 Cell Number	 Email Address
			   Account No.			 
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	 Members will be registered, after verification as 
per the above requirement and will be provided 
a Zoom link by the Company via email provided 
by them.

	 The login facility will remain open from 10:00 
a.m. till conclusion of the meeting.

	 The shareholders are also encouraged to send 
their comments/suggestions, related to the 
Agenda items of the Annual General Meeting 
on the above mentioned email address or 
WhatsApp/SMS on 0323-4123854 or 0300-
4799881 by 25 October 2021 before close of 
business hours (5.00 pm).

4)	 Proxy Holders
	 A member entitled to attend and vote at this 

meeting may appoint another member as his or 
her proxy to attend and vote. Proxies in order to 
be effective must be received at the registered 
office of the Company not less than 48 hours 
before the time of holding the meeting. Proxy 
Form attached.

	 CDC Account Holders
	 Accountholders / sub-accountholders holding 

book entry securities of the Company in Central 
Depository System (CDS) of Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) who 
wish to attend the Annual General Meeting 
are requested to please bring their original 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or 
original passport with a photocopy duly attested 
by their bankers alongwith participant’s I.D. 
number and their account number in CDS for 
identification purposes. 

	 In case of corporate entity, the Board of 
Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with 
specimen signature of the nominee together 
with the original proxy form duly filled in must be 
received at the registered office of the Company 
not less than 48 hours before the time of holding 
the meeting. The nominees shall produce their 
original CNIC or original passport at the time of 
attending the meeting for identification purpose.

5)	 Submission of copy of CNIC (Mandatory):
	 In order to comply with the directives of Securities 

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
issued from time to time, the shareholders are 
requested to kindly send photocopy of their 
CNICs to us immediately at our address “Rupali 

House, 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand 
Road, Lahore-54000 or our Share Registrar 
M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 
32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A. Phase 
VII, Karachi-75500”. The shareholders who 
have already provided CNIC to us need not re-
submit it unless the CNIC is expired. Corporate 
shareholders are requested to provide their 
National Tax Numbers (NTN). In case of non 
submission of copy of CNIC the dividend may 
be withheld.

6)	 Circulation of Audited Financial Statements 
through email

	 Members are hereby informed that Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide 
SRO No. 787(I)/2014 dated 8 September 2014 
has allowed companies to circulate Audited 
Financial Statements along with notice of 
annual general meeting to their members 
through email subject to compliance with the 
conditions outlined in the said Notification. In 
this regard a written notice may please be sent 
to us as soon as possible at our following email 
addresses and for convenience of the members, 
a standard request form has also been placed 
on the Company’s website. 

	 Company Secretary: shabbir.gilani@rupaligroup.com 
	 THK Associates:	 aa@thk.com.pk 

7)	 E-Voting
	 Members can exercise their right of vote under 

applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) 
Regulations, 2018.  If required, the Company 
will facilitate as per the procedure laid down in 
said Regulations.

8)	 Transmission of Annual Financial Statements 
through CD/DVD/USB

	 SECP through an SRO No.470(I)/2016 dated 
31 May 2016 has allowed companies to 
circulate their annual balance sheet, profit and 
loss account, auditors’ report and directors’ 
report (Annual Report) to the members through 
CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses.  In 
view of this the Company has sent its Annual 
Report to the shareholders in the form of CD.  
Any Member desiring the copy of Annual 
Report in printed form may send request on 
standard request form placed under the Investor 
Information sections in the website www.
rupaligroup.com.
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9)	 Bank Mandate with International Bank 
Account Number (IBAN) for payment of 
Cash dividend

	 Under the provisions of Section 242 of the 
Companies Act, 2017, Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan has directed all listed 
companies to pay cash dividends only through 
electronic mode directly into the bank accounts 
of the shareholders.  Therefore, please provide 
us your Bank Mandate details including 
International Bank Account Number (IBAN) 
alongwith a copy of valid CNIC at the earliest, if 
not already provided to.

1.	 your respective CDC Participant / CDC Investor 
Account Services (in case your shareholding is 
in book entry form) or

2.	our Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates 
(Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial 
Street 2, D.H.A. Phase VII, Karachi-75500 (in 
case your shareholding is in physical form).

10)	 Withholding tax on dividend income for 
Non-Filers and  payment of cash dividend 
through electronic mode

	 The shareholders are hereby informed that 
pursuant to amendments in Section 150 of the 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through Finance 
Act, 2019, Income Tax will be deducted at 
source @15% for person appearing in ATL and 
@30.00% for person not appearing in ATL at 
the time of processing dividend (determined as 
per “Active Tax Payer List (ATL)” available  on 
Federal Board of Revenue’s website) from the 
dividend amount, if any.

11)	 Joint Account Holders
	 In case of joint account, each holder is to be 

treated individually as either a filer or non-
filer and tax will be deducted on the basis 
of shareholding of each joint holder as may 
be notified by the shareholder, in writing as 
follows, to our Share Registrar. In case no such 
notification is received by us, equal deduction of 
tax will be made where proportionate holding is 
not available with us.

		                                  Principal Shareholding	              Joint Shareholding 
   Folio/CDC       Total	      Number/CDC  Shareholding     	Name &	 Shareholding
 Shareholders    Shares	  Account No.       proportion       CNIC No.	 proportion
			                   (No. of Shares)		  (No. of Shares)

12)	 Unclaimed dividend and shares 
	 Pursuant to Section  244 of the Act, any shares 

issued or dividend declared by the Bank, which 

remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three 
years from the date it became due and payable 
shall rest with the Federal Government after 
compliance of procedures prescribed under the 
Act.  In this respect, we had already initiated 
the process and concerned shareholders were 
advised vide our letter dated 28 December 
2017 to claim their unclaimed dividend/Shares.  
However, only few shareholders have claimed 
their pending entitlements so far.

	 Shareholders are again advised to approach 
the Company’s Share Registrar to claim their 
pending dividend/shares at the earliest failing 
which the Company shall proceed further in 
terms of requirement of Section 244(2) (a) & (b) 
of the Act.

13)	 Consent for the Facility of video-link
	 Members may participate in the meeting via 

video-link facility.  If the Company receives a 
demand from members holding an aggregate 
10% or more shareholding residing at a 
geographical location outside Lahore to 
participate in the meeting through video link at 
least 7 days prior to the date of meeting, the 
Company will arrange video link facility in that 
city.

	 In this regard, Members who wish to participate 
through video-link facility, should send a duly 
signed request as per the following format to the 
Registered Address of the Company.

	 I/we ______________ of ______________ 
being a member of Rupali Polyester Limited 
holder of _______ ordinary share(s) as 
per Registered Folio / CDC Account No. 
____________ hereby opt for video link facility 
at _________.

					        _______________
					        Signature Member

14)	 Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account
	 The SECP, through its letter No. CSD/ED/

Misc./2016-639-640 dated 26 March 2021, has 
advised all listed companies to adhere to the 
provision of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 
2017 (the “Act), which requires all companies to 
replace shares issued in physical form to book-
entry form within four years of the promulgation 
of the Act.
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	 In accordance with the requirement of Section 
72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing 
company shall be required to replace its physical 
shares with book-entry form in a manner as 
may be specified and from the date notified by 
the Commission, within a period not exceeding 
four years from the commencement of this Act.  
The shareholders having physical shares may 
open CDC sub-account with any of the broker or 
investor account directly with CDC to place their 
physical shares into scrip-less form.

15)	 Availability of Audited Financial Statements 
on Company’s Website

	 The audited financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended 30 June 2021 
have been made available on the Company’s 
website www.rupaligroup.com 

16)	 Requirement of Companies (Postal Ballot) 
Regulations, 2018

	 Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) 
Regulations, 2018, for any other agenda items 
subject to the requirements of Section 143 and 
144 of the Companies Act, 2017, members 
present in person, through Zoom/Video link or 
by proxy, and having not less than one-tenth 
of the total voting power can also demand 
a poll and exercise their right of vote through 
postal ballot, that is voting by post or through 
any electronic mode, in accordance with 
requirements and procedure contained in the 
aforesaid Regulations.

	 Shareholders are requested to notify any 
change in their addresses immediately. 

	 Statement under Section 134 (3) of the 
Companies Act, 2017

	 This statement sets out the material facts 
concerning the special business to be 
transacted at the Forty First Annual General 
Meeting of Rupali Polyester Limited to be held 
on 27 October 2021.

Agenda Item No. 6 (a) – Transactions carried 
out with associated companies (related parties) 
during the year ended 30 June 2021 to be approved 
by way of Special Resolution
The transactions carried out in normal course of 
business with associated companies (related parties) 
were being approved by the Board of Directors as 
recommended by the Audit Committee on quarterly 
basis pursuant to Section 208 of the Companies Act, 

2017, Rule 15, Chapter IV of the Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 
and Rule 5.6.6(a) of the PSX Regulations.

However, the majority of Company Directors were 
interested in these transactions due to their common 
directorship and holding of shares in the group 
companies, the quorum of directors could not be 
formed for approval of these transactions pursuant 
to Section 207 of the Companies Act, 2017 and, 
therefore, these transactions have to be approved by 
the shareholders in General Meeting.

Agenda Item No. 6 (b) – Authorization to Chief 
Executive Officer for Related Party Transactions 
to be carried out with associated companies 
(related parties) during the year ending 30 June 
2022 to be approved by way of special resolution
The Company shall be conducting Related Party 
Transactions with associated companies (related 
parties) during the year ending 30 June 2022 in the 
normal course of business.  The majority of Directors 
shall be interested in these transactions due to 
their common directorship and shareholding in the 
associated companies.  Therefore, these transactions 
with associated companies (related parties) shall 
have to be approved by the shareholders.

In order to ensure smooth supply during the year, 
the shareholders may authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer to approve transactions with associated 
companies (related parties) on case to case basis 
for the year ending 30 June 2022.  The summary of 
commercial reasons, nature and scope of Related 
Party Transactions are explained in the proposed 
resolution.  However, these transactions shall be 
placed before the shareholders in the next General 
Meeting for their approval/ratification.

The Directors are interested in the resolution to be 
extent of their common directorship and shareholding 
in the associated companies.

Statement under Section 166 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2017
This statement sets out the material facts relating 
to justification for choosing the appointees for 
appointment as independent directors.

In compliance with Section 166 (3) of the Companies 
Act, 2017, consent papers will be accepted from those 
persons who are in compliance with Section 166 (2) of 
the Companies Act, 2017.
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Statement of Compliance
with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019
Name of Company		  - Rupali Polyester Limited
Year Ended			   - 30 June 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are eight (8) as per the following:

		  a. Male:		 7
		  b. Female:	 1

2.	 The composition of board is as follows:

			    Category		  Names

		   a) Independent Directors	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani
						      Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany

		   				    Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir
		   b) Non-Executive Directors	 Mrs. Amyna Feerasta
						      Mr. Shehzad Feerasta
						      Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta
						      Mr. Abdul Hayee

		   c) Executive Director		  Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this company;

4.	 The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5.	 The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date 
of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by Board/ 
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8.	 The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act 
and these Regulations;

9.	 The Board meets the Directors’ Training requir¬ements as per the Regulations;
10.	 The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, 

including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the 
Regulations;

11.	 Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the 
Board;
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12.	 The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

             a)  Audit Committee:					      b)   HR and Remuneration Committee:

1.	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani	 Chairman		  1.      Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani	 Chairman
2.	 Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir	 Member		  2.      Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta	 Member
3.	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member 		  3.      Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta	 Member

c)	 Nomination Committee (Board will consider)
d)	 Risk Management Committee (Board will consider).

13.	 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee 
for compliance;

14.	 The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:  
 

a)	 Audit Committee, quarterly (or more if required to convene)
b)	 HR and Remuneration Committee, quarterly (or more if required to convene)

15.	 The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.  The head of audit and other audit staff are suitably qualified 
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

16.	 The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit 
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent 
and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company 
secretary or director of the company; 

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except 
in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed 
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

18.	 We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied 
with;

Explanations:
19.	 Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 is below: 

Regulations      Explanation

6	 Determination of number of independent Directors comes to 2.66 (rounded to 2) which is based 
on Eight Elected Directors. The fraction contrived in one-third number is not rounded up as the two 
elected independent directors have requisite competencies, skills, knowledge and experience to 
discharge and execute their duties competently, as per applicable laws and regulations. As they 
fulfill the necessary requirements as per applicable laws and regulations, hence, appointment of 
a third independent director is not warranted

9	 Elections of directors for next term are being held this year.  Board will review during the next 
term.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Nooruddin Feerasta 									         Shehzad Feerasta
Chairman										          Director

Lahore: 21 September 2021
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Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021
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Rupees in thousand	 Note 	 2021	 2020	

ASSETS	
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 	
Property, plant and equipment 	 6	  3,089,935 	  3,082,353 
Right of use asset	 7	  -   	  -   
Investment properties 	 8	  602,000 	  567,500 
Long term security deposits		  4,281 	  4,281 
		  3,696,216 	  3,654,134 
CURRENT ASSETS	
Stores, spares and loose tools 	 9	  1,025,135 	  1,264,934 
Inventories 	 10	  1,365,309 	  1,042,770 
Trade receivables 	 11	  24 	  984 
Advances, deposits and receivables 	 12	  338,433 	  275,986 
Other financial assets	 13	  -   	  143,000 
Tax refunds due from government		  46,697 	  72,106 
Cash and cash equivalents 	 14	  29,739 	  310,633 
		  2,805,337 	  3,110,413 
Total assets		  6,501,553 	  6,764,547 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES	
Authorised share capital		  350,000	 350,000
35,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital	 15	  340,685 	  340,685 
Capital reserves		   71,490 	  71,490 
Revenue reserves		  754,640 	  301,371 
Revaluation reserve	 16	  1,719,056 	  1,719,056 
		  2,885,871 	  2,432,602 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES	
Deferred tax liabilities 	 17	  250,502 	  271,509 
Borrowings 	 18	  -   	  94,369 
Deferred liability - net staff gratuity	 19	  181,349 	  169,000 
		  431,851 	  534,878 
CURRENT LIABILITIES	
Trade and other payables 	 20	  1,354,397 	  671,156 
Contract liabilities	 21	  10,829 	  25,888 
Current portion of borrowings 	 18	  94,369 	  47,185 
Payable to related parties	 22	  583,119 	  583,119 
Short term borrowing	 23	  1,053,644 	  2,254,330 
Payable to government authority	 24	 65,824 	  155,000 
Accrued markup on borrowings		  19,908 	  58,634 
Unclaimed dividend		  1,741 	  1,755 
		  3,183,831 	  3,797,067 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS	 25 	 -  	 -  
Total liabilities 		  3,615,682 	  4,331,945 

Total equity and liabilities		  6,501,553 	  6,764,547  

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.	

	

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  	 Muhammad Ahsan Iqbal 
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			    Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2021
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Rupees in thousand	 Note 	 2021	 2020	

Revenue - net	 26	  7,554,429 	  5,914,249 

Cost of revenue	 27	  (6,710,396)	   (5,520,731)

Gross profit	  	  844,033 	  393,518 

Distribution costs	 28	  (23,162)	  (17,909)

Administrative expenses	 29	  (159,864)	  (164,092)

Other operating expenses	 30	  (56,690)	  (15,364)

		  (239,716)	  (197,365)

Operating profit		  604,317	 196,153 

Other income	 31	  80,805 	  145,615 

Finance costs 	 32	  (139,086)	  (232,967)

		  (58,281)	  (87,352)

Profit before tax		   546,036 	  108,801

Taxation	 33	  (92,824)	  (75,291)

Profit after tax		   453,212 	  33,510 

		                          (Rupees)	

Earnings per share - basic and diluted	 34	 13.30 	 0.98 

	

	

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.		

	

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  	   Muhammad Ahsan Iqbal 
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			       Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year ended 30 June 2021
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Statement of other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2021
		
Rupees in thousand	 Note 	 2021	 2020	

Profit after taxation		  453,212	  33,510

Other comprehensive income	
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss		  -	 -
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss		  -	 -
   Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations 	 19.3	  80 	  19,524 
   Deferred tax charge relating to remeasurement of defined benefit obligation		  (23)	  (5,662)

   		  57 	  13,862
Other comprehensive income		  57 	  13,862 

Total comprehensive income for the year	 	 453,269 	  47,372  

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.			 
			 
	

   Nooruddin Feerasta			   Shehzad Feerasta	  		  Muhammad Ahsan Iqbal
Chief Executive Officer			           Director			     	   Chief Financial Officer 
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Rupees in thousand	 Note 	 2021	 2020	

Cash flow from operating activities	
	 Profit before tax		   546,036 	  108,801
	 Adjustments for:
	 Depreciation	 6.4	  159,668 	  174,247
	 Gain on remeasurement of fair value of investment property	 31	  (34,500)	  (105,000)
	 Provision for staff retirement benefits	 19.2	  32,029 	  38,133
	 Profit on disposal of fixed assets	 31	  (1,965)	  -
	 Remission of liabilities	 31	  -   	  (449)
	 Profit / Mark-up on bank deposits and staff loan	 31	  (3,457)	 (4,798)
	 Workers welfare fund 	 30	  12,777 	  3,268
	 Workers profit participation fund 	 30	  33,624 	  5,898
	 Finance cost	 32	  139,086 	  232,967
			    337,262 	  344,266
Operating profit  before working capital changes 		  883,298	 453,067	
	 Effect of working capital changes
	 (Increase) / decrease in current assets
	 Stores, spares and loose tools 		  239,799 	  (391,813)
	 Inventories 		  (322,539)	  (169,677)
	 Trade receivables 		  960 	  72,378
	 Advances, deposits and other receivables 		  (62,447)	  (62,604)
			   (144,227)	  (551,716)
	 Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
	 Trade and other payables 		  641,871 	  (670,888)
	 Contract liabilities		   (15,059)	  20,039
	 Payable to related parties		   (89,176)	  155,000
			    537,636 	  (495,849)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations		  1,276,707	 (594,498)
	 Income taxes paid 		  (88,445)	  (117,374)
	 Interest income received	 31	  3,457 	  4,798 
	 Staff retirement benefits paid	 19.2	  (19,601)	  (15,203)
	 Finance cost paid		   (177,812)	  (222,304)
	 Worker’s profit participation fund paid	 20.1	  (5,031)	  (6,673)
			   (287,431)	  (356,756)
Net cash inflows / (outflows) from operating activities		  989,276 	  (951,254)
Cash flows from investing activities				  
Payments for property, plant and equipment 		   (167,905)	  38,912 
Loans to related parties 		   143,000 	  -   
Proceeds from long term deposits		   -   	  115 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment		   2,620 	  -   
Net cash (outflows) / inflows from investing activities		   (22,285)	  39,027 
Cash flows from financing activities				  
Long-term financing repaid		   (47,185)	  (47,185)
Payments of lease liabilities 	 18.2	  -   	  (985)
Dividend paid		   (14)	  (33,822)
Short-term borrowings obtained 		   (1,200,686)	  1,272,464 
Net cash (outflows) / inflows from financing activities		   (1,247,885)	  1,190,472 
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents		   (280,894)	  278,245 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 		   310,633 	  32,388 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year	 	  29,739 	  310,633  

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  	 Muhammad Ahsan Iqbal
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			    Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2021
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Balance as at 01 July 2019	  	  340,685 	  71,490 	  1,664,125 	 (1,376,058)	 1,719,056 	 2,419,298  
	
Profit for the year		  -   	  -   	  -   	  33,510 	  -   	  33,510 
Other comprehensive
  income for the year		   -   	  -   	  -   	  13,862 	  -   	  13,862 
Dividend for the year ended 
  June 30, 2019		   -   	  -   	  -   	  (34,068)	  -   	  (34,068)

Balance as at 30 June 2020		    340,685 	 71,490 	  1,664,125 	 (1,362,754)	  1,719,056 	  2,432,602 
	

Balance as at 01 July 2020	  	   340,685 	  71,490 	  1,664,125 	 (1,362,754)	  1,719,056 	  2,432,602  
	
Profit for the year		  -   	  -   	  -   	  453,212 	  -  	  453,212 
Other comprehensive 
  income for the year		   -   	  -   	  -   	  57 	  -   	  57 

Balance as at 30 June 2021		  340,685 	  71,490 	  1,664,125 	 (909,485)	  1,719,056	  2,885,871  
	

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  	 Muhammad Ahsan Iqbal 
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			     Chief Financial Officer

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Retained Total shareRevaluation 
reserve earnings capital and 

reserves
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1	 Status and nature of business
Rupali Polyester Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 24 May 1980 as a Public Limited 
Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 now Companies Act, 2017. The company is 
principally engaged in manufacture and sale of polyester products. The registered office of the company is 
located at 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, Lahore. The manufacturing facility of the company 
is situated at 30.2 KM Lahore - Sheikhupura Road, Sheikhupura. The regional office is situated at 1st 
floor, Gul Tower, I.I Chundigar Road, Karachi.
	

2	 Basis of preparation
		

2.1	 Basis of measurement	
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for 
certain items as disclosed in the relevant accounting policies.	

2.2	 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017. Approved 
accounting standards comprise of:									       
												          
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and						   
												          
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan (ICAP); and										        
		
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.					   
							     
Wherever, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 or directives issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan differs with the requirements of these accounting standards, the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 or the requirements of the said directives shall prevail.

2.3	 Functional and presentational currency
These financial statements have been prepared in Pakistani Rupees (PKR), which is the company’s 
functional and presentational currency.

3	 Use of judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards requires 
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement 
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually 
evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectation of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the process of applying the Company’s 
accounting policies, the management has made the following estimates and judgements which are 
significant to the financial statements:

-	 assumptions and estimates used in determining the recoverable amount, residual values and useful 	
	 lives of property, plant and equipment (Note 6);
-	 assumptions and estimates used in deriving fair value of freehold land (Note 6);
-	 assumptions and estimates used in deriving fair value of investment properties (Note 8);
-	 assumptions and estimates used in determining the provision for slow moving and obsolete stores, 	
	 spares and loose tools (Note 9);

Notes to the Financial Statements
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-	 assumptions and estimates used in writing down items of inventories  to their net realisable value (Note 10);
-	 assumptions and estimates used in calculating the provision for impairment for trade receivables (Note 11);
-	 assumptions and estimates used in calculating the provision for impairment for advances and other 	
	 deposits (Note 12);
-	 assumptions and estimates used in calculating the provision for impairment for other financial assets 	
	 (Note 13);
-	 assumptions and estimates used for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation (Note 19);
-	 assumptions and estimates used in disclosure and assessment of provision for contingencies and 	
	 commitments (Note 25);
-	 assumptions and estimates used in determining current income under relevant tax law and the 		
	 decisions of appellate authorities on certain cases issued in the past (Note 33);	
			 

4	 Standards, amendments and interpretations

4.1	 Standards, amendments and interpretations to published approved accounting standards that are 
not yet effective										        
	

	 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under 
the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for 
accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2021:					   
	

-	 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and 
IFRS 16 is applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier 
application permitted. The amendments introduce a practical expedient to account for modifications 
of financial assets or financial liabilities if a change results directly from IBOR reform and occurs 
on an ‘economically equivalent’ basis. In these cases, changes will be accounted for by updating 
the effective interest rate. A similar practical expedient will apply under IFRS 16 for lessees when 
accounting for lease modifications required by IBOR reform. The amendments also allow a series of 
exemptions from the regular, strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging relationships directly 
affected by the interest rate benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively with earlier 
application permitted. Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely because of changes 
resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain conditions are met.			 

													           
-	 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) – the International Accounting 

Standards Board (the Board) has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide 
practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for 
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, with earlier application permitted. Under the standard’s 
previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease modifications and, 
if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves 
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light 
of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard 
for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient 
for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible rent 
concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account for them as if they were 
not lease modifications.										        
												          

-	 The practical expedient introduced in the 2020 amendments only applied to rent concessions for 
which any reduction in lease payments affected payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021. 
In light of persistence of economic challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board has 
extended the practical expedient for COVID-19 related rent concessions by one year i.e. permitting 
lessees to apply it to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only 
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022.							     
					   

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021



Annual Report 2021 61

-	 Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of the 
COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:						    
The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the 
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;	

	 Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022; 
and		

										        
	 There is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease.			

	
-	 Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which 
clarifies what comprises the cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when 
determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to 
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting 
period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of 
comparative information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the 
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of 
retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application. 	
												          

-	 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of 
items produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the  location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when 
testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity 
measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The standard 
also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity 
shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment 
that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the 
financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the 
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of 
retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest 
period presented. 											         
												          

-	 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceptual 
Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added 
paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3 . An entity shall apply those amendments to business 
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting 
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted if at the same time 
or earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the 
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, issued in March 2018.					   
											         

	 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) amendments apply 
retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These amendments in 
the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard 
also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of 
the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in 
accordance with IAS 8. 										        
	

-	 Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) – the 
Board has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies 
and to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 
include: 												          
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	 Requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant 
accounting policies; 											         
	

	 Clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are 
themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and 					   
							     

	 Clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or 
conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements. 				  
												          

-	 The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional 
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are 
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application 
permitted. 											         
	

-	 Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) – The amendments introduce a new 
definition for accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial 
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. 						    
						    

	 The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates 
by specifying that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by 
an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2023, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting 
policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company 
applies the amendments.

-	 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 
12) – The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does 
not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, 
companies will need to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary 
differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases 
and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be 
recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative 
effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. 
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 
with earlier application permitted. 

-	 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments 
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28). The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business 
or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that 
involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. 
The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader 
review. 

-	 The above improvements are likely to have no impact on the Company’s financial statements.		
										        

	 IFRS 9 – The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the 
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the 
lender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in 
assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. 							    
					   

	 IFRS 16 – The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by 
excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective 
of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives. 		
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	 IAS 41 – The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to exclude 
taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value 
technique.												          
												          

	 The above improvements are likely to have no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

5	 Summary of significant accounting policies							     
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those 
of the previous financial year.

	 5.1	    Property, plant and equipment 
		  						    

	 Owned assets											         
Property, plant and equipment  are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses, if any, except for freehold land, which is stated at revalued amount. Cost includes expenditures 
directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset.							     
					   

	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  is charged on reducing balance method at the rates 
stated in Note 6 to these financial statements. Depreciation charge commences from the month in 
which asset is available for use and no depreciation is charged during the month of disposal.

	 Residual values and the useful lives are reviewed at each date of statement of financial position and 
adjusted if expectations differ significantly from previous estimates.					   
	

	 Residual values are determined by the management as the amount it expects it would receive 
currently for an item of property, plant and equipment  if it was already of the age and in the condition 
expected at the end of its useful life based on the prevailing market prices of similar assets already 
at the end of their useful lives.

	
	 Useful lives are determined by the management based on the expected usage of assets, physical 

wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the 
assets and other similar factors.

	 The carrying values of property, plant and equipment  are reviewed at each reporting date for 
indications that an asset may be impaired and carrying values may not be recovered. If any such 
indication exists and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the 
asset or cash generating unit is written down to its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 
of property, plant and equipment  is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. 
Impairment losses are charged to statement of profit or loss.						    
						    

	 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.						    
						    

	 Surplus on revaluation of land is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity, to the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognised in other 
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset; all other 
decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss.						    
						    

	 Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals 
and improvements, if any, are capitalised, when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow 
to the Company.										        
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	 An item of property, plant and equipment  is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by 
comparing proceeds with carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognized in statement 
of profit or loss.											         
	

	 Capital work in progress										        
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated to the date of statement of financial position 
less impairment losses, if any. It consists of expenditure incurred, advances made and other directly 
attributable costs in respect of property, plant and equipment in the course of their construction and 
installation. Transfers are made to relevant operating fixed assets category as and when assets are 
available for use.											         
	

	 Capital stores and spares										        
Stores and spares of capital nature are recognised at cost less impairment losses, if any. Stores, 
spare parts and stand-by equipments are recognised as capital items when they meet the criteria of 
property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as stores, spares and loose tools. 

	 Items meeting the criteria of property, plant and equipment include such stores, pares and stand-
by equipment that are to be used as a replacement part at some future time and such parts shall 
be installed and put into use at a later date. Depreciation of such items shall be recognised when 
installed in plant and machinery. Items removed from plant and machinery shall be recognised 
at scrap value.											         
	

5.2	 Investment properties 										        
Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including 
property under construction for such purposes), is measured initially at cost, including transaction 
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. Gains or 
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or loss in 
the period in which they arise. 		

										        
	 An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is 

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period 
in which the property is derecognised.								      
				  

	 If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use 
has changed, any difference between the carrying amount and fair value of this item at the date 
of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation reserve for investment property. However, if 
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the profit and loss 
account. Upon the disposal of such investment property, any surplus previously recorded in equity 
is transferred to retained earnings, the transfer is not made through statement of profit or loss.		
										        

	 If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or stock-in-trade, it is reclassified as property, 
plant and equipment or stock-in-trade and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its 
cost for accounting purpose for subsequent recording.							    
					   

5.3	 Stores, spares and loose tools 								      
	 These are valued at lower of cost using Weighted Average Cost method and estimated net realisable 

value. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete stores and spares. Items in transit are valued 
at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon.					  
							     

	 Net realisable value specifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated cost of completion and cost necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.		
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5.4	 Stock in trade											         
All stocks are stated at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost is determined as 
follows:												          
				  

	     Stock Type			    	   Valuation Method				  

	 Raw material		 Weighted average basis							    
Work in process	 Estimated manufacturing cost including appropriate overheads 		
Finished goods	 Average manufacturing cost including appropriate overheads

	 Stock in transit	 Cost comprising invoice value plus other expenses paid thereon			 
			   Average manufacturing cost including appropriate overheads

	 Waste/Scrap		 Net realizable value				  

	 Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 
to their present location and condition.

	
	 Average manufacturing cost in relation to work in process and finished goods consists of direct 

material, labour and a proportion of appropriate manufacturing overheads.

	 Net realisable value is determined on the basis of estimated selling price of the product in the 
ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 
to be incurred for its sale.		

										        
5.5	 Financial instruments	
						    
	 5.5.1	Financial assets						   

a)	 Amortised cost 	
	 Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flow represents 

solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from 
these financial assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss 
arising on derecognition are recognised directly in profit or loss.

									      
b)	 Fair value through other comprehensive income						    
	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business 

model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.	
						   

c)	 Fair value through profit or loss		  						    
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive 
income or assets that are designated at fair value through profit or loss using fair value option, 
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss in the period in which it arises. 							     
	

	 Equity instrument financial assets are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial 
recognition. Changes in fair value of these financial assets are normally recognised in profit 
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in prom or loss when the 
Company’s right to receive payment is established. Where an election is made to present 
fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income there is no 
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the statement of profit or loss 
following the derecognition of the investment.
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	 Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the 
consideration given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are 
subsequently remeasured to fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be. Any gain 
or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in 
the statement of profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

	 Financial assets are derecognized when the Company loses control of the contractual rights 
that comprise the financial asset. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and 
that are created as a result of statutory requirements imposed by the Government are not the 
financial instruments of the Company.								      
				 

5.5.2 	Financial liabilities							     
	 Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially 
measured at fair value less transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement 
of profit or loss.

	 Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method.

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender or substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts 
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

		
5.5.3	Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities						    
	 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 

of financial position, if the company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized 
amounts and the company intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 							     

								     
5.6	 Impairment of financial assets	 					   
	 The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its 

financial assets. The Company applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime expected credit 
losses for trade debts, due from customers and contract assets.

	 Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining 
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

	 The Company recognises in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected 
credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.	

5.7	 Trade debts	 					   
	 Trade debts are amounts due from customers for sales made during the ordinary course of business. 

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at invoice value, which approximates 
fair value, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less 
expected credit losses. Bad debt are written off when identified.					   
							     

5.8	 Cash and cash equivalents
	 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose 

of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,  current accounts, 
deposit accounts and foreign currency accounts.							     
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5.9	 Share Capital										        
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.			 
									       

5.10	 Earnings per share (EPS)	 								      
	 Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of 

the company by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 
												          

	 Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS with weighted average number of ordinary shares 
that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and 
post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 
that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 
												          

5.11	 Trade and other payables									       
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation 
in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective 
liabilities.											         
	

5.12	 Contract assets and  liabilities									       
Contract liabilities are recognized for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance 
obligations. Similarly, if the Company satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the 
consideration, the Company recognises either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement 
of financial position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required 
before the consideration is due. 									       
			 

5.13	 Staff retirement benefits

5.13.1	 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity	
	 The Company operates an unapproved unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for all 

employees having a service period of more than one year for workers and two years for 
other employees. Provisions are made in the financial statements to cover obligations on 
the basis of actuarial valuations carried out on a periodic basis or when these is a significant 
change. The most recent valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2021 using the “Projected 
Unit Credit Method”.

	 Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the year in 
which they arise. Past service costs are recognized immediately to profit or loss.

5.13.2	Defined contribution plan - Provident fund							     
The Company operates an approved provident fund scheme which covers all permanent 
employees. Equal monthly contributions are made by the Company and employees. 
Contribution is made by the Company at the rate of 8.33 % of basic salary.			 
	

5.14	 Compensated absences									       
The Company accounts for compensated absences in the accounting period in which these are 
earned.											         
	

5.15	 Foreign currency transactions and translation 							     
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated 
into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation are recognised in statement of profit or loss. All 
non-monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction or on the date when fair values are determined. 						    
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5.16	 Borrowing costs 										        
Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on an 
accrual basis and are disclosed as ‘Mark-up Accrued’ to the extent of the amount remaining 
unpaid.		

	 Mark up, interest and other charges on borrowings are capitalized up to the date of commissioning 
of the respective qualifying asset, acquired out of the proceeds of such borrowings. All other mark-
up, interest and other charges are charged to the statement of profit or loss.				  
								      

5.17	 Provisions											         
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events and, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
obligation.											         

5.18	 Contingent liabilities
	 Contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past events 

and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or when there is present 
obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability.

5.19	 Contingent assets										        
Contingent assets are disclosed when there is a possible asset that arises from past events and 
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not 
recognised until their realisation become virtually certain.						    
						    

5.20	 Related party transactions and transfer pricing						    
Transactions and contracts with the related parties are priced at arm’s length except for the 
transactions as disclosed in Note 11, 12, 13, 22, 39 and 40 to these financial statements.		
										        

5.21	 Taxation	 									          	
Current:											         
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking 
into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any.					   
							     

	 Deferred:											         
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary 
differences arising from difference between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets 
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

	 In this regard, the effects on the deferred taxation of the portion of income expected to be subject 
to final tax regime is adjusted in accordance with the requirement of Accounting Technical Release 
- 27 of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

	 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences 
reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of 
financial position date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except where 
deferred tax arises on the items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity. 
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5.22	 Borrowings and their costs										       
Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense 
in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, 
if any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.							     
												          

5.23	 Revenue recognition	 									       
The company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the company and specific criteria has been met 
for each of the company’s activities as described below:

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of goods is transferred to customers at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods.

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred 
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The Company has a policy of advance sale 
receipt and where it is not practicable, the normal credit term is 1 to 7 days.

		
	 The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract with customers that are 

separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated 
(e.g., right of returns, volume rebates or any other rebates). In determining the transaction price 
for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence 
of significant financing components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable to the 
customer (if any). As a result, only the following transactions are considered relevant or, in any way, 
affect Company’s revenue from customers.

	 Interest income recognised on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at 
the applicable rate.

	 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.			 
								      

5.24	 Proposed dividend and transfer between reserves							    
Dividend declared and transferred between reserves made subsequent to the reporting date are 
considered as non-adjusting events and are recognized in the financial statements in the period in 
which such dividends are declared / transfers made.
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6.3	 Particulars of immoveable assets the Company are as follows	
	 Location	 Address	 Usage of property	 Total area 
					     (sq.ft)
	 Lahore	 241-242 Upper Mall Scheme, Anand Road, Lahore	 Head office	 54,994 
	 Lahore	 Property Number S.42 - R/3/1 Race Course Road, Lahore	  Investment property	 27,225
	 Sheikhupura	 30.2 KM Lahore - Sheikhupura Road	  Production plant	 5,249,524
	 Karachi	 1st floor, Gul Tower, I.I Chundrigar Road, Karachi	 Regional office 	 2,439  

(Rupees in thousand)		          2021		         2020

6.4 	 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under:						   
Cost of revenue			  142,548 	  157,518 

	 Distribution costs			   856 	  808 
	 Administrative expenses			   16,264 	  15,362 

		  	 	159,668 	  173,688

6.5	 The fair value of the Company’s land is determined periodically by an independent professionally 
qualified valuer. The latest revaluation exercise was carried out in financial year 2017 by M/s Hamid 
Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt.) Limited, who is independent valuer and is not related to the Company. The 
valuer has appropriate experience in fair value measurement of properties in the relevant locations. 
The fair value of the land was determined based on the market comparable approach that reflects 
recent transaction prices for similar properties. The fair valuation is considered to represent a level 
2 valuation , in accordance with IFRS – 13 based on observable inputs being the location and 
condition of the assets. The fair market value of the plot was Rs. 1.5 million per kanal at that 
date with forced sale value of Rs.1.20 million per kanal, amounting to Rs. 1,446.840 million and  
Rs. 1,157.472 million respectively.

6.6    	Had there been no revaluation, the cost, accumulated impairment and book value of revalued 		

assets as at June 30, 2021 would have been as under:	 	

(Rupees in thousand)   	 Cost 	 Impairment	 Book Value		          

		 Freehold land	 21,172	 -	 21,172

		 Balance as at June 30, 2021	 21,172	 -	 21,172

Balance as at June 30, 2020	 21,172	 -	 21,172

6.7	 The plant and machinery is subject to 1st charge amounting to Rs: 667 million (2020: Rs. 667 
million) on account of long term loan from MCB Bank Limited and certain guarantees issued by 
bank on behalf of the Company.

6.8	 The land on which the company’s building for head office has been constructed is in the name of 
close relative of directors of the company. The land has been provided to the company for a period 
of 30 years ending on April 2034 . No monthly rentals are charged against the said land.
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7	 Right of use assets
	 Vehicles	 Total 

Cost 		  Rupees in thousand
Balance as at July 01, 2019	 6,456	 6,456
Additions during the year 	 -	 -
Transferred to owned assets 	 (6,456)	 (6,456)

Balance as at June 30, 2020	 -	 -
	
Balance as at July 01, 2020 	 -	 -
Transferred to owned assets	 -	 -
Additions during the year 	 -	 -
Balance as at June 30, 2021	 -	 -
	
Depreciation
Balance as at July 01, 2019	 2,979	 2,979
Charge for the year	 559	 559
Transferred to owned assets	 (3,538)	 (3,538)
Balance as at June 30, 2020	 -	 -

Balance as at July 01, 2020	 -	 -
Charge for the year	 -	 -
Transferred to owned assets	 -	 -
Balance as at June 30, 2021	 -	 -
Carrying value as at June 30, 2020	 -	 -
Carrying value as at June 30, 2021	 -	 -

7.1	 The company had several leased assets under the head Vehicles during the year ended June 
30, 2020 having an average lease term of 5 years.

7.2	 The company had availed option to purchase vehicles for a nominal amount at the end of the lease 
term. These assets have accordingly been transferred to property, plant and equipment and are 
now classified as vehicles.									       

Rupees in thousand	 Note	 2021	 2020

7.3	 Amounts recognized in profit and loss
	 Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets	 7.4		  -	 559

	 Interest expense on lease liabilities			   -	 53
			   	 -	 612

7.4	 Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets
	 Distribution costs			   -	 28

	 Administrative expenses			   -	 531
			   	 -	 559

7.5	 The total cash outflow for leases amount to Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 1.04 million).
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8	 Investment property						   
	 Opening balance			   567,500  	  462,500 
	 Fair value gain on investment property	 8.1		   34,500   	  105,000  
			   	 602,000  	   567,500 

8.1	 This represents freehold land, owned by Company and held for capital appreciation. The fair 
value of investment property was determined as at 30 June 2021 by M/S Masood Associates 
(Pvt.) Limited, an independent valuer having relevant professional qualifications. The fair value 
was determined on the basis of professional assessment of the price that would be received to 
sell the property in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
The valuation model of land is based on price per kanal. In determining the valuation, the valuer 
refers to numerous independent market inquiries from local estate agents / retailers in the vicinity 
to establish the present market value. The capitalization rate adopted is made by reference to 
the yield rates observed by the valuers for similar properties in the locality and adjusted based 
on the valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the respective properties. The fair valuation is 
considered to represent a level 2 valuation, in accordance with IFRS - 13, based on observable 
inputs being the location and condition of the assets. The fair value gain, during the year, has been 
recognised in statement of profit or loss in accordance with fair value model of IAS - 40.

8.2	 MCB Bank Limited has registered 1st hypothecation charge by way of equitable mortgage over 
this investment property amounting to collateral value of Rs: 300 million (2020: Rs. 300 million), 
on account of long term loan obtained by the Company and certain guarantees issued by bank on 
behalf of the Company.								      

Rupees in thousand	 Note 	 2021	 2020	

9	 Stores, spares and loose tools	
	 Stores	 132,353	 112,336
	 Spares	 886,202	 1,146,058	
	 Loose tools	   6,580  	  6,540
		  1,025,135	 1,264,934 	
	
10	 Inventories 	
	 Raw materials	 383,641	 775,229
	 Stock in transit	  14,603	 4,980
	 Work in progress	 43,221	 41,172
	 Finished goods – at cost	 923,298	 140,293
	 Finished goods – at net realizable value	 10.1 	 546	 81,096	
 			   1,365,309 	 1,042,770
	

10.1	 Finished goods – at net realizable value						   
Cost			   	 2,445 	   86,007 

	 Written down during the year			   (1,899) 	   (4,911)
			   	  546  	   81,096 

11	 Trade receivables 	
	 Trade receivables - unsecured, considered good
	 Due from associated undertakings	 11.1		   - 	 967
	 Due from other parties			    24 	  17
				    24 	 984
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11.1	 This represents an amount due from Rupafil Limited, an associated Company by virtue of Common 
Directorship. The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated 
by reference to month-end balances amounts to Rs: 103.726 million (2020: 103.826 million). None 
of this balance is considered as impaired and neither any of the receivable from Rupafil Limited has 
been written off nor considered doubtful.				  

(Rupees in thousand)		  2021		  2020

11.2	 Ageing of trade receivables
	 Due from associated undertakings			      	
	 Not overdue			   - 	 -
	 Past due less than 30 days			    -   	  967
	 Past due less than 60 days			   -   	 -
	 Past due less than 90 days			   -  	  -
	 Past due less than 365 days			   -	 -
	 Past due over 365 days			   -   	  -
				    -	 967

	 Due from other parties
	 Not overdue			   -   	 -
	 Past due less than 30 days			   24 	 17
	 Past due less than 60 days			    -   	  -
	 Past due less than 90 days			   -   	  -
	 Past due less than 365 days			   -   	  -
	 Past due over 365 days			   -   	  -
				    24	  17

11.3	 The Company has applied a simplified approach in determining expected credit loss and has established 
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking 
factors specific to the trade receivables and the economic environment. The Company has no historical 
credit loss experience. Therefore, no allowance for expected credit loss has been recognised in these 
financial statements in respect of trade receivables from contract with customers.			 
										          	

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

12	 Advances, deposits and prepayments 
	 Advances to employees			    	   
	 - against salary	 12.1		    258  	  866  
	 - against expenses			   145	 182
	 Advances to suppliers			   12,883	 13,949	
	 Advances to related parties	 12.2	  	62,482 	  42,010 
	 Sales tax refundable	 12.3		  239,985 	  197,388 
	 Other receivables	 12.4		   22,680  	   21,591  
			    	338,433  	   275,986  
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12.1	 Loans have been granted under staff loan policy, as temporary financial assistance, to staff. These 
are secured against the gratuity payable to employees and are recoverable in 12 equal monthly 
installments. Therefore, all of the amount is recoverable within 1 year as of reporting date. These 
loans carry mark-up at the rate of 14.00% (2020: 14.00%) per annum. The maximum aggregate 
amount of loans and advances due from non-executives at the end of any month during the year 
was Rs. 2.123 million (2020: Rs. 2.123 million). The chief executive officer and directors have not 
taken any loan or advance from the Company.						    
	

12.2	 This represents receivable in respect of advance for purchases and expenses incurred on behalf of 
related party and associated companies. The amount is unsecured and is repayable in the ordinary 
course of business. The detail of balances is as follows:

(Rupees in thousand)			   2021		  2020
					   

	 Spintex Limited - related party			   41,886 	 41,908
	 Rupafil Limited - associated company			   20,565 	 71
	 Rupafil PowerGen (Pvt.) Limited - associated company			    31 	  31
				    62,482	 42,010

12.3	 This represents an amount due from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) on account of sales tax 
refundable. During the year, an amount of Rs: Nil (2020: Rs. 70.679 million) has been refunded to 
the Company.

12.4	 This mainly include amounts receivable from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) and Sui Northern 
Gas Pipeline Limited (SNGPL). The Company believes that the relevant inflow of benefit is 
virtually certain. Therefore, no expected credit loss has been recognised in respect of these 
receivables.	

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

13	 Other financial assets
	 Loans to related parties	 13.1	          -		  143,000

		  -		  143,000

13.1	 During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Company signed a memorandum of Understanding 
(MoU) with Spintex Limited, a related party, for purchase of machinery spare parts. Under 
the terms of MoU, the Company has to make an advance payment of Rs: 170 million and the 
transaction shall be completed with-in a span of 12 months from date of signing of MoU. The 
amount is unsecured and maximum aggregate a`mount outstanding at any time during the year 
calculated by reference to month-end balances amounts to Rs: 143 million (2020: 143 million). 
The whole amount has been refunded by Spintex Limited during 2021 with MOU stood rescinded. 

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note		  2021		  2020

14	 Cash and cash equivalents 
	 Cash in hand					   
	 - local currency		  47	 77
	 - foreign currency		  28	 26		

		  75	 103
	
	 Balances with banks in:	
	 - current accounts		  1,556	 185		

- deposit accounts	 14.1 	 28,079	 310,315
	 - foreign currency accounts	 14.2	 29	 30	
			   29,664	 310,530
			   29,739	 310,633		
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14.1	 These, during the year, carry mark-up ranging from 5.5% to 7.25% perannum. (2020 : 6.53% to 
11.25%) .

14.2	 This represents a foreign currency balance of FCU 181.12 translated @ Rs. 158 (2020 : FCU 
181.12 translated @ Rs. 164) per FCU.

						        Note	        2021	   2020		    2021          2020	

								        Number of shares in 000s	 Rupees in thousand

15	 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital	

	

	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.		  9,691	 9,691	 96,909	 96,909
	 - Fully paid in cash	 15.1	 19,934	 19,934	 199,339	 199,339	
	 - Fully paid other than cash		  4,444	 4,444	 44,437	 44,437	
	 - Allotted as bonus share		  34,069	 34,069	 340,685	 340,685		

							     
						    
15.1	 Fully paid other than cash
	 Share issued against non-repatriable investment	  19,934	  19,934	  199,339	  199,339
		   19,934	  19,934	  199,339	 199,339

15.2	 Shares held by related parties of the Company	 						    

										          2021	         2020

	 			    							       Number of shares

	 Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta		  500 	  500
	 Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir		   500 	  500
	 Mrs. Amyna Feerasta		   500 	  500
	 Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani		  939,833 	  939,833
	 Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany		   21,345 	  21,345
	 Mr. Shehzad Feerasta		   490 	  490
	 Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta		   10 	  10
	 Mr. Abdul Hayee		   1,150 	  1,150
	 Feerasta Senior Trust		              17,859,290	 17,859,290

											             18,823,618   18,823,618 

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

16	 Revaluation reserve
	 Surplus on revaluation of land                                                     16.1	      	1,719,056	 1,719,056	

			   1,719,056	 1,719,056		
			 
16.1	 During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Company carried out revaluation of its freehold land 

which represents an area measuring nine hundred and sixty four kanals situated at Sheikhupura 
Road, Lahore. This surplus includes Rs: 293.39 million that relate to revaluation of a land, which 
was subsequently classified as Investment Property in 2015. The remaining surplus of Rs. 1,425.69 
million relate to freehold land included in Property, plant and equipment.				  
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16.2	 The revaluation surplus on freehold land is a capital reserve and is not available for distribution to 

shareholders of the Company, in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

17	 Deferred tax liabilities
	 Movement of deferred tax 
	 Opening balance		  271,509 	 279,723
	 Charged / (credited)
	 - to profit or loss		  (21,030)		 (13,876)
	 - to other comprehensive income		  23		 5,662
			   (21,007)		 (8,214)		

		  250,502		 271,509
		
17.1	 Deferred tax comprises temporary differences attributable to:
	 Taxable temporary difference	
	 Property, plant and equipment	 863,801	 916,714
	 Deferred liability - net staff gratuity	 -	 19,524
		  863,801	 936,238
	 Deductible temporary difference
	 Deferred liability - net staff gratuity	 (181,349)	 (169,000)
	 Worker’s profit participation fund 	 (38,396)	 (9,803)
	 Unused tax losses and unused tax depreciation	  (436,434)	 (805,433)
		  (656,179)	 (984,236)
	 Net taxable/(deductible) temporary differences	 207,622	 (47,998)
	 Deferred tax liability/ (asset) @ 29%	 60,210	 (13,919)
	 Less: Un-used tax credit	 (254,549)	 (229,131)
	 Add: Unrecognised unused tax credit	 254,549	 229,131
	 Add: Unrecognised deferred tax on deductible temporary differences	 190,292	 285,428  
	 Net deferred tax liability	 250,502	 271,509

17.2	 Deferred tax asset amounted to Rs. 444.84 million (2020: Rs. 514.56 million) on unused tax credit 
and deductible temporary differences has not been recognized in the these financial statements 
as the income tax assessment of the company is mainly finalized under minimum tax regime in 
accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly, the timing difference 
between accounting profits and taxable income are unlikely to reversible in the foreseeable future.

 

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

18	 Borrowings 
	 Secured
	 Loan from banking companies	 18.1	  94,369 		  94,369	
	 Lease liabilities	 18.2	 -		  -
			   94,369		    94,369  
	 Current borrowings		  94,369		   47,185 
	 Non current borrowings		  -		   94,369
			   94,369 		  141,554

18.1	 The Company had obtained a term finance facility from MCB Bank Limited for the purpose of 
import of plant and machinery, spare parts and related civil works. The facility is secured by way of 
first charge over plant and machinery and land aggregating to Rs. 667 million. It carries a mark- up 
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 	 at a rate of 6 month KIBOR + 0.5% to be reset on biannual basis. The facility was approved in May 
2014 with a grace period of two years. As at reporting date, the Company has paid 7 installments 
out of total 10 installments. The total tenure of the facility was 7 years with maturity date of 26 May 
2021 but this has been extended for 1 year due to COVID - 19 pandemic. Accordingly, two biannual 
instalments, amounting to Rs: 47.185 million each, are outstanding as at reporting date, ending on 
May 2022. Markup is payable on quarterly basis in arrears.

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		 2020

18.2	 Lease liabilities

	 Opening balance	 -	 985
	 Interest expense for the year	 -	 53
	 Less: payments made during the year	 -	 (1,038)
	 Closing balance	 -	 -

	 Current liabilities	 -	 -
	 Non current liabilities	 -	 -
		  -	 -
			 
	 This represents lease finance facility obtained from NIB Bank for a term of five years. As at June 30, 

2020 all outstanding instalments have been paid by the company. Future minimum lease payments 
were discounted at an implicit interest rates ranging from of 7.40% to 7.48 % per annum to arrive 
at their present values. Rentals were payable in advance in monthly instalments. Taxes, repairs, 
replacements and insurance costs were borne by the Company. The lease contained a bargain 
purchase option exercisable at the end of lease the Company has exercised this option at maturity 
in 2020.

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

19	 Deferred liability - net staff gratuity

	 Present value of defined benefit obligation 	 19.1	 181,349	 169,000	
	 		  181,349	 169,000

19.1	 Present value of defined benefit obligation
	 The movement in defined benefit obligation is as follows:
	 Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning	 169,000	 165,594
	 Current service cost	 18,497	 18,384
	 Interest cost	 13,532	 19,749
	 Benefits paid	 (19,600)	 (15,203)	
	 Remeasurement (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation	 (80)	 (19,524)
		  181,349	 169,000

19.2	 Amount recognised in profit or loss
	 Current service cost	 18,497	 18,384
	 Interest cost	 13,532	 19,749
	 	 32,029	 38,133
	
19.3	 Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
	 Remeasurement (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation 		   (80)	  (19,524)

			   (80)	 (19,524)
			 

		

-
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(Rupees in thousand)		  2021		  2020

19.4	 Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuations
	 Financial assumptions
	 Discount rate	 10%	 8.5%
	 Expected rate of increase in salary	 9%	 7.5%
	 Demographic Assumptions
	 Mortality rate	 SLIC (2001-05)	   SLIC (2001-05)
	 Retirement assumptions	 Age 60	 Age 60
		
19.5	 Sensitivity analysis
	 Change in discount rate	 170,650	 193,669	

Change in salary increase	 193,669	 170,465 

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

20	 Trade and other payables 
	 Trade payables		  1,147,267	  124,663 	
	 Accrued liabilities		  111,072	 416,285
	 Sales tax payable		  24,697	 22,427
	 Withholding tax payables		  495	 656
	 Retention money		  957	 1,491
	 Provident fund payable		  312	 279
	 Workers’ profit participation fund	 20.1	 45,904	 17,311
	 Workers’ welfare fund 	 20.2	 15,376	 4,732
	 Other payables		  8,317	 83,312		

		  1,354,397	 671,156

20.1	 Workers’ profit participation fund
Balance at the beginning of the year	 20.1.1	 17,311	 18,086	

	 Add: Allocation for the year		  33,624	 5,898
	 Less: Amount paid 		  (5,031)	 (6,673)
			    
	 Balance at the end of the year		  45,904	 17,311

20.1.1	 The Company has not charged interest on the opening balance as the management is of the 
view that balance payable has not been claimed by the workers.				  
										        

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

20.2	 Workers’ welfare fund
Balance at the beginning of the year		  4,732	 1,465
Add: Charge for the year		  12,777	 3,268
Less: Amount paid		  (2,133)	 -

Balance at the end of the year		  15,376	 4,732

21	 Contract liabilities 
Advances from customers		  10,829	 25,888
			    10,829 	 25,888
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(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

22	 Payable to related parties
Payable to associated concern	 22.1	              583,119	 583,119		

		               583,119  	  583,119 

22.1	 The Company availed interest free and unsecured loan, to meet working capital requirements 
of the Company, from Alnu Trust holding 26.17% (2020: 26.17%) of the total share capital of the 
Company. During the year, Rs. nil (2020: Rs. 294.161 million) has been obtained from trust and 
Rs. nil (2020: Rs. 75.00 million) has been repaid. Maximum amount utilised during the year ended 
30 June 2021 amounted to Rs. 583.119 million (2020: Rs. 583.119 million). The loan is repayable 
on demand by the trust.

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

23	 Short term borrowing
Running finances from banks	 23.1 & 23.2	            1,053,644	       1,402,881	
Deferred payments of running finances from banks	 23.3	 -	             851,449
			              1,053,644	       2,254,330	

23.1	 The aggregate finance facilities available from various commercial banks amounted to Rs. 1,681.242 
million (2020: Rs. 1,681.242 million). These carry mark-up at the rates ranging from 7.65% to 8.59% 
(2020: 8.68% to 15.36%) p.a. and are secured against hypothecation charge on current assets 
of Rs. 2,089.265 million (2020: Rs. 2,089.265 million) and promissory notes of Rs. 1,475.149 
million (2020: Rs. 1,798.729 million) respectively. Maximum amount utilised during the year ended 
30 June 2020 amounted to Rs.1,661.527  million (2020: Rs. 1,560.901 million). Mark-up is payable 
on quarterly basis in arrears.

23.2	 The facilities for opening letter of credit from various commercial banks as at 30 June 2021 
aggregates to Rs. 2,150 million (2020: Rs. 2,150 million) of which the amount remained unutilised 
at the year-end was Rs. 921.306 million (2020: Rs. 1,038.121 million).

23.3	 This represents deferred Mark-up payments and deferred letter of credit payments outstanding 
towards various commercial banks and transferred to short-term borrowings. These were deferred 
in pursuance to COVID - 19 pandemic and were payable within a span of 1 year from reporting 
date. The terms and conditions in respect of markup and security were same as disclosed in note 
22.1. All such deferred payments have been cleared during current year.

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

24	 Payable to government authority
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)	 25.2(e)	 65,824	 155,000		

		  65,824	 155,000	

25	 Contingencies and commitments 
	 Contingencies			 

25.1	 Notice from taxation authorities
(a)	 The Company received notice under section 177(6) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company 

has duly complied with the requirements and has not received any further notice nor yet received 
any order in this respect. The matter is pending and the management strongly believes that this will 
have no impact on the cash flows of the Company.

(b) 	 The Company has received certain notice under Rule 44(4) of Income Tax Rules’ 2002 for tax year 
2015, 2016 and 2017. These notice required the Company to furnish a reconciliation of the amount of 
payments made during the year and tax withheld thereon. The Company has duly submitted the required 
documents and has not received any further notice or order, as at reporting date. The management 
strongly believes that this would have no impact on operations and cash flows of the Company. 
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	 Tax Year 2015   -  Case is remanded back by Commissioner Appeals.  No demand in field till date. 
Tax Year 2016   -  Information is submitted.  No Final Order is passed by FBR 
Tax Year 2017   -  Information is submitted.  No final order is passed by FBR 
The management strongly believes that this would have no impact on operations and cash flows 
of the Company.”

	
(c)	 The Company has received notice under Section 161(1A) of Income Tax Ordinance for tax year 

2014. The Company has duly submitted a reply with the grounds that such tax charge is not 
applicable to the Company and no final order has been passed by FBR yet. The management 
strongly believes that this would have no impact on operations and cash flows of the Company.

25.2	 Pending litigations	
(a)	 The Additional Collector Sales Tax passed order in original no. 04/2000 dated 31.08.2000 wherein 

he charged the sales tax on  supplies to associated undertakings Rs. 484,279, input on diesel 
consumed in production of electricity Rs. 1,790,250 and Output tax on waste and scrap Rs. 839,014 
(Total Rs. 3,113,543). The above case came before Lahore High Court and the Honourable Court 
dismissed the appeal of the Company vide order dated 06.10.2020 on technical grounds without 
addressing the merits of the case. Against said order, the Company has filed CPLA before Supreme 
Court of Pakistan the proceedings of which are still pending as at the date of statement of financial 
position.

(b)	 The supplies made by the Company to its customers of Azad Jammu and Kashmir (AJ&K), during 
the period from November, 1997 to June, 1998, were treated as exports being zero rated u/s-4 
of the Sales Tax Act, 1990. However, the Deputy Collector (Refund) vide his order in original no. 
32/2001 dated 27.06.2001 adjudged that as the appellant has not followed the procedure described 
u/s-131 of the Custom Act, 1969 so the supplies made to AJ&K from Pakistan cannot be treated as 
exports being zero rated u/s-4 ibid. The amount of impugned sales tax demand is Rs. 19,404,249/- 
which was already deposited by the Company vide challans dated 15.06.1998 & 29.06.1998. The 
proceedings of the said case are still pending in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), Lahore 
as at the date of statement of financial position.

(c)	 The Company has filed writ petition No. 6786/2010/ICA No. 1 of 2017, CPLA No. 11/2019 before 
the Hon’ble Lahore High Court, Lahore on 05th April, 2010 against selection of case for audit under 
section 177 of the income tax ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2009. The  writ petition was decided by 
the Hon’ble Lahore High Court vide order dated 27th May , 2015. The Hon`ble Court held that the 
notices are validly issued. However, the concerned Commissioners were directed to disclose and 
communicate reasons for selection of audit to the taxpayers in writing, provide them an opportunity 
of hearing, decide the objections through reasoned order and thereafter proceed further (if any) 
justly, fairly and strictly in accordance with law. Against this order ICA No. 1 of 2017 was filed on 
24th December, 2016 which has been dismissed by the Hon’ble Court vide order dated 11th April, 
2019. Against the said order the Hon’ble Lahore High Court, Lahore CPLA NO. 11/2019 has been 
filed before the Apex supreme Court of Pakistan which has granted leave and CPLA is converted 
in CP, against which hearing is awaited.  No Tax Liability / demand is involved in this case.  Its 
matter of selection of audit which has been challenged alongwith several other taxpayers. The 
management and legal advisor of the Company is of the view that this will have no effect on cash 
flows of the Company. Leave to Appeal has been granted by the Supreme Court in the above 
case and CPLA is converted in CP, against which hearing is awaited as at the date of statement of 
financial position.  No Tax Liability / demand is involved in this case. Its matter of selection of audit 
which has been challenged alongwith several other taxpayers.

(d)	 Certain Ex-Employees of the Company have filed cases with in authority under Payment of Wages 
Act, 1936. This collectively amounts to Rs. 3.258 million (2020: Rs. 2.507 million. The legal advisor 
is of the view that the Company will have no liability in this respect.
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(e)	 During the year, Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 was 
promulgated, however, the same was subsequently recalled by the government with request to the 
Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) for settlement of the matter judicially. The decision to be made 
by the SCP would impact all pending appeals in various High Courts, therefore, it invited intervener 
applications to join the proceedings. Subsequent to reporting date, the SCP has decided the case 
in favour of government on August 13, 2020. Accordingly, the Company made provision of Rs: 155 
million in  financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2020. The Company however filed a writ 
petition no. 42283 of 2020 in the Lahore High Court against the levy of GIDC and the Honourable 
Lahore High Court vide its order dated 15 September 2020  issued stay order as the management 
is of the view and under proviso to section 8(2) of the GIDC Act, 2015 it was not liable to pay the 
cess since it has not collected nor passed on the same to its customers. Finally The Lahore High 
Court vide its order dated 17 June 2021 has decided the petitions in favour of Rupali against the 
arrears of GIDC prior to 2015. The court declared the recovery of the Cess in question before the 
year 2015 as illegal. The Court further directed SNGPL to generate new bills and shall be paid by 
the petitioners who shall discharge from liability for the use of gas. It is made clear that the Cess 
shall not form part of the SNGPL gas bills. Resultantly the aforementioned liability of Rs. 155 million 
has been reduced by Rs. 35.965 million being the amount of GIDC belonging to period prior to 
2015. The company has made 10 monthly payments of Rs. 4,959,786 each to SNGPL till June 30, 
2021.

(f)	 A Goods Declaration of Import was claimed repeatedly due to duplication of data by customs 
authorities. The Deputy Commissioner, Large Taxpayers Office, Lahore, charged 100% penalty 
and default surcharge u/s-33 and 34 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 vide his order no. ST-02/2020 dated 
03.12.2020. The total amount of penalty and default surcharge as charged in the order was Rs. 
1,823,542/- The said order was challenged before Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals, Lahore 
who vide his order no. 20/A dated 25.06.2021 deleted the demand of penalty to the extent of 95% 
of the total demand. However rest of the penalty of 5% alongwith default surcharge was upheld 
by the first appellate authority. Being aggrieved, the Company has filed an appeal on 16.07.2021 
before ATIR which is pending as at the date of statement of financial position.

(g)	 The Company was selected for audit for the Tax year 2006 wherein certain additions were made 
along with default of taxes which were impugned before the appellate forums provided under law. 
The impugned demand of tax payable, adjudged up to the level of The Appellate Tribunal Inland 
Revenue (ATIR), was forcefully adjusted by FBR from Refund Payment Order no. 24453/2011 
dated 09.04.2011 related to tax period June, 2010. However, the appeals before all available forums 
were filed by the Company till the case is finally decided by Supreme Court vide order against Civil 
Petition No. 1422-L of 2017 wherein the Apex Court accepted the appeal of the Company except 
the points regarding addition on account of provision for Gratuity u/s-21(e) and Withholding tax 
default on supply of local Store Items to sister concerns The amount of tax involved in above points 
is Rs. 9,644,870/- Review petition against above points is filed before the Apex Court in May, 2021. 
As at the date of statement of financial position, the hearing of review petition is still pending before 
Supreme Court of Pakistan.

(h)	 The Additional Commissioner made addition of Rs. 914,000/- on account of provision of doubtful 
receivables, u/s-122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 which was challenged by the Company 
before Commissioner Income Tax (Appeals), Zone-I, Lahore who vide his order dated 15.08.2006 
deleted the said addition. Being aggrieved, FBR filed appeal before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal 
Lahore but the same is dismissed by ATIR and the order of first appellate authority was upheld. 
Then FBR filed Income Tax Reference before Lahore High Court vide PTR NO. 36/2009 which is 
still pending. Above tax reference is filed by FBR before Lahore High Court which is pending as at 
the date of statement of financial position.
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25.3	 Warranties / Guarantees provided by the company
	 Guarantees issued to different organizations in the normal course of business amounted to 

Rs. 120.375 million (2020: Rs. 120.375  million).

	 Commitments				  
											         

25.4	 Letter of credits
	 Commitments against irrevocable letters of credit as at 30 June 2021 amounted to  Rs. 1.229 billion 

(2020: Rs. 1.112 billion)

25.5	 Capital commitments
	 Contracts for capital expenditure commitments outstanding as at 30 June 2021 amounted to 
	 Rs. 284.101 million (2020: Rs. 36.444 million).

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

26	 Revenue - net
	 Sale of goods	 26.2	 8,884,365	 6,954,886
	 Less: sales tax		  (1,284,291)	 (1,005,692)
	 Less: discount allowed		  45,645)	 (34,945)
			   (1,329,936)	 (1,040,637)
			   7,554,429	 5,914,249

26.1	 All the sales of the Company are polyester related sales and
	 are made to customers located with-in-Pakistan.

26.2	 Disaggregation of revenue
	 Local Sales 		  8,884,365	 6,954,886	
	 Export Sales		  -	 -
			   8,884,365	 6,954,886

27	 Cost of revenue
	 Opening raw material		  780,209	 258,223
	 Add: purchases		  5,169,058	 3,902,744	
	 Less: Closing raw material		  (398,244)	 (780,209)
	 Raw material consumed		  5,551,023	 3,380,758
	 Freight and octroi		  128,033	 80,931
	 Packing material consumed		  114,287	 65,706	
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 27.1	 378,852	 310,248
	 Stores consumed		  72,692	 292,849
	 Fuel and power	 27.2	 947,783	 814,180
	 Other manufacturing overheads		  1,026	 761
	 Repair & maintenance		  35,380	 31,123
	 Running & maintenance of vehicles		  22,337	 16,128
	 Insurance		  18,790	 15,685
	 Depreciation		  142,548	 157,518
	 Rent rates and taxes	 27.3	 2,149	 2,535
	 Cost of goods manufactured		  7,414,900	 5,168,422

Effect of change in work in progress inventory
	 Opening work in progress		  41,172	 67,261
	 Closing work in progress		  (43,221)	 (41,172)
			   (2,049)	 26,089

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Rupees in thousand)		  2021		  2020

Effect of change in finished goods inventory
	 Opening finished goods		  221,389	 547,609
	 Closing finished goods		  (923,844)	 (221,389)		

		  (702,455)	 326,220
			   6,710,396	 5,520,731	
	
27.1	 Salaries, wages and amenities include Rs. 22.107 million (2020: Rs. 25.907 million) in respect of 

staff retirement benefits and Rs. 0.756 million (2020: Rs. 0.222 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution.

27.2	 This includes provision of Rs. Nil million (2020: Rs. 155.00 million) in respect of Gas Infrastructure 
Development Cess (GIDC).

27.3	 This includes expense of Rs. 1,270,451 in respect of a lease categorised as ‘short-term lease’, 
due to the fact of being lease term less then 12 months without purchase option. Associated lease 
payments have been charged on a straight-line basis over lease term. The total cash outflow 
amounts to Rs: Nil (2020: Rs: 1,401,760) including sales tax.

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

28	 Distribution costs
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 28.1	 5,998	 5,849	

Printing and stationery		  106	 128
	 Travelling and conveyance		  170	 151
	 General repair and maintenance		  162	 80	
	 Vehicle running and maintenance		  104	 133
	 Entertainment		  91	 100
	 Rent, rates and taxes		  183	 201
	 Communication		  77	 81
	 Utilities		  259	 270
	 Depreciation		  856	 836
	 Insurance		  47	 41
	 Books and subscription		  43	 91
	 Frieght and octroi		  15,066	 9,948
			   23,162	 17,909

28.1	 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 0.522 million (2020: Rs. 0.611 million) in respect of 
staff retirement benefits and Rs: 0.024 million (2020: Rs 0.026 million) in respect of provident fund 
contribution.
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(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020

29	 Administrative expenses
	 Directors’ remuneration		   1,346 	  5,888 	

Salaries, wages and other benefits	 29.1	  113,958 	  111,136 
	 Printing and stationery 		   2,022 	  2,434 
	 Travelling and conveyance 		   3,224  	  2,873 	
	 General repair and maintenance 		  3,087	 1,523
	 Vehicle running and maintenance		  1,972  	   2,522 
	 Entertainment		    1,725  	  1,892 
	 Rent, rates and taxes		   3,486 	  3,822 
	 Legal and professional charges		   3,327 	  5,447 
	 Advertisement 		   266 	  225 
	 Communication		   1,471 	  1,542 
	 Utilities		   4,925 	  5,139 
	 Depreciation 		   16,264 	  15,892 
	 Insurance 		   897  	  787		

Miscellaneous		   432 	  612 
	 Books and subscription		  812	 1,720
	 Auditors’ remuneration	 29.2	 650	 638
			    159,864 	 164,092

29.1	 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs.  9.910 million (2020: Rs. 11.615 million) in respect 
of staff retirement benefits and Rs. 0.450 million (2020: Rs. 0.498 million) in respect of provident 
fund contribution

(Rupees in thousand)		  2021		  2020		
							     
	 29.2  Auditors’ remuneration

	 Audit services
	 Annual audit fee		  525	 525
	 Certification and review		  85	  85
	 Taxation services		  -	 28
	 Out of pocket charges		  40	 -
			   650	 638

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020	

30	 Other operating expenses
	 Donations	 30.1	 10,289	 6,198
	 Workers’ welfare fund		  12,777	 3,268
	 Workers’ profit participation fund		  33,624	 5,898
			   56,690	 15,364

30.1	 The details of the donations along with name of donee are as follows:				  
Agha Khan Education Services	  	 10,000 	  5,000 

	 Learntech.pk (Pvt.) Limited		   -   	  194 
	 Sponsoring a golf match - proceeds distributed among 

needy persons		   -   	  100 		
Different individuals being affected by COVID - 19 	 30.3	  289	 758 

	 Others	 30.4	 -   	  146 
		   	 10,289 	  6,198 

30.2	 None of the directors and their spouses had any interest in the parties to whom donation is given.
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30.3	 This pertains to food items distributed through director finance of the Company to needy persons, 
during the pandemic period.

30.4	 This relates to purchase of T-Shirts distributed among needy persons.

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020		
					   
31	 Other income	 	
	 Income from financial assets				  
	 Interest Income from banks		  3,420	 4,495
	 Mark-up on Staff Loans		  37	 303
			   3,457	 4,798
	 Income from non-financial assets
	 Sale of scrap		  40,882	 35,358
	 Remission of liabilities		  -  	 449
	 Fair value gain on investment property		  34,500	 105,000
	 Miscellaneous income		  1	 10
	 Gain on disposal of fixed asset		  1,965	 -  
			   77,348	 140,817
			   80,805	 145,615		

31.1    Sale of scrap
	 Gross sales		  48,238	 41,909
	 Less: sales tax		  (7,356)	 (6,551)
			   40,882	 35,358	

32	 Finance costs 
	 Bank Charges		  7,029	 520
	 Mark-up on long term borrowing		  11,081	 21,073
	 Mark-up on short term borrowing		  120,976	 211,321
	 Mark-up on lease liabilities		  -	 53
			   139,086	 232,967	
33	 Taxation
	 Current tax expense
	 - current year	 33.1	 113,317	 88,714
	 - prior year(s)		  537	 453
	 Deferred tax expense / (income)		  (21,030)	 (13,876)
			   92,824	 75,291

33.1	 This represents tax at the rate of 1.5% of Revenue in accordance with the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 (“the Ordinance”).

33.2	 Tax charge for the current and comparative year represent minimum tax payable under the 
Ordinance, and for this reason, relationship between tax expense and accounting profit has not 
been presented.

33.3	 The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2020. 
Tax returns of subsequent tax years are deemed to be assessed under provisions of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) unless selected for an audit by the taxation authorities. 
The Commissioner Inland Revenue may at any time during a period of five years from the end of 
Financial year in which the officer issued or treated as issued the original assessment order.

33.4	 According to the management’s assessment, sufficient tax provision has been made in the 
Company’s financial statements. The comparison of tax provision according to the financial 
statements viz-a-viz tax assessment for last three years is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Rupees in thousand)			   2020	 2019	 2018	

	 Provision according to financial statements	 88,714	  95,670 	 60,479
	 Tax assessment	 89,251	 96,123	 61,053

34	 Earnings per share - basic and diluted	

	

Earnings per shares - basic	 453,212	 33,510	 34,069	 34,069	 13.30	 0.98

	 453,212	 33,510	 34,069	 34,069	 13.30	 0.98

34.1	 A diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible 
instruments in issue as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 which would have any effect on the earnings per 
share if the option to convert is exercised.

(Rupees in thousand)	 Note	 2021		  2020	

35	 Financial instruments

Financial assets as per statement of financial position
At amortized cost			 
Long term security deposits		  4,281	 4,281
Trade receivables		  24	 984
Advances and other deposits		  22,680	 21,591
Other financial assets		  -	 143,000
Cash and cash equivalents		  29,739	 310,633
			   56,724	 480,489

	 Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
At amortized cost
Borrowings		  1,148,013	 2,395,884
Deferred liability - net staff gratuity		  181,349	 169,000
Trade and other payables		  1,266,656	 624,260
Payable to related parties		  583,119	 583,119
Unclaimed dividend		  1,741	 1,755
			   3,180,878	 3,774,018
Fair values of financial instruments

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction in the principal market at the measurement date under current market conditions 
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. 
As at the reporting date, fair values of all financial instruments are considered to approximate their carrying 
amounts. Further, there are no fair value estimation uncertainties.

	 Methods of determining fair values

	 Fair values of financial instruments for which prices are available from the active market are measured by 
reference to those market prices. The fair value of financial assets (other than investments) and liabilities 
with no active market are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on 
discounted cash flow analysis based on inputs from other than observable market.	

	 Discount / interest rates used for determining fair values

	 The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when applicable, are based on the government 
yield curve as at the reporting date plus an adequate credit spread.

	 Fair value hierarchy

	 The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance 
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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	 Level 1	 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.	

	 Level 2	 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 	
		  liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)		

	 Level 3	 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e., 		
			   unobservable inputs).

36	 Financial risk management objectives
	 Financial risk factors
	 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other 

price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse 
effects on the financial performance.

	
	 Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board). 					   

													           
(a)	 Market risk

(i)	 Currency risk 	
	 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial 
transactions in foreign currencies. The Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk in respect 
of commitments against letters of credit in foreign currency. The management does not view hedging as 
being financially feasible. The effect of change in currency rate would be as follows for current year’s 
commitments as at the reporting date.

									           Increase /	 Effect on Profit	    Effect on
									         (Decrease)	     before tax	      equity
									          in Rate		         Rupees in 000s
	 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis									       

								             +5%		         10.691	         7,591
									               -5%		        (10.691)	        (7,591)
(ii)	 Other price risk  
	 Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency 
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its 
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not 
exposed to equity price risk as it does not have any exposure in equity securities.

(iii)	 Interest rate risk   
	 Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the 
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. 

	 At the reporting date, the profit, interest and mark-up rate profile of the Company’s significant financial 
assets and liabilities is as follows:

(Rupees in thousand)		  2021		  2020	
														            
	 Variable rate financial instruments
	 Financial assets

Balances with banks in deposit account		  28,079	 310,315	
			   28,079	 310 ,315
					   
Financial liabilities
Borrowings		  1,148,013	 2,395,884
Deferred liability - net staff gratuity		  181,349	 169,000
			   1,329,362	 2,564,884
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	 Fair value sensitivity analysis
	 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit 

or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect profit or loss of the 
Company.		  											         
		

	 Interest rate sensitivity analysis
	 Financial assets	 2021	 1%	 281	 199
			   -1%	 (281)	 (199)
		  2020	 1%	 3,103	 2,203
			   -1%	 (3,103)	 (2,203)	
	 Financial liabilities
		  2021	 1%	 (13,294)	 (9,438)
			   -1%	 13,294	 9,438
		  2020	 1%	 (25,649)	 (18,211)		

		  -1%	 25,649	 18,211
b)	 Credit risk   
	 Credit risk is the risk that one party to the financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and 

cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. 
Credit risk arises from balances with bank, trade debts, advances, deposits and other receivables. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement is given below:		  	

(Rupees in thousand)		  2021		  2020	

	 Maximum exposure to credit risk   
Long term security deposits		  4,281	 4,281
Trade receivables		  24	 984
Advances and other deposits		  22,680	 21,591
Other financial assets		  -  	 143,000
Cash and cash equivalents	 	 29,739	 310,633
			   56,724	 480,489

	

	 The Company attempts to control the credit risk by monitoring credit exposure, limiting transactions with 
specific customers and continuing assessment of credit worthiness of customers.

	 Based on the past experience, record of recoveries, the Company believes that the past due amount do 
not require any provision or impairment loss.	 							     
						      	

	 The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings 
as follows:	

	 Habib Bank Limited (CA)	 30-Jun-21	 JCR-VIS	 A1+	 AAA	 1,515	 149
	 National Bank of Pakistan	 25-Jun-21	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA	 10	  6 
	 Soneri Bank Limited	 25-Jun-21	 PACRA	 A1+	 AA-	 28,108	 310,345	
	 Bank Al Habib Limited	 26-Jun-21	 PACRA	 A1+	 AAA	 29	 29

(c)	 Liquidity risk   
	 Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with 

financial liabilities.

	 The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and the availability 
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. As at June 30, 2021 the Company 
has borrowing limits available from financial institutions and Rs. 29,635 million (2020: Rs. 310,500 million) 
in bank balances. The Company follows an effective cash management and planning policy to ensure 
availability of funds and to take appropriate measures for new requirements.					  
									       

Bank Date of rating Rating Agency
Rating

Short-term Long-term

2021 2020

Rupees in thousand

Effect on profit
 before tax

Rupees in thousand

Increase / 
(Decrease) in rate

Effect on equity
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	 Below mentioned financial liabilities are exposed to profit / mark-up rate risk except trade and other 
payables and payable to related parties along with contractual maturities.				  
	 				  

	 As at June 30, 2021
	 Borrowings	 94,369	 94,369	 -	 -	 -	
	 Trade and other payables	 1,354,397	 1,354,397	 -	 -	 -	
	 Payable to related parties	 583,119	 583,119	 -	 -	 -	
	
	 As at June 30, 2020
	 Borrowings	 141,554	 47,185	 94,369	 -	 -	
	 Trade and other payables	 671,156	 671,156	 -	 -	 -		

Payable to related parties	 583,119	 583,119           	 -	 -	 -		
					     	

37	 Capital risk management		
	 The Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are as follows:		

	
	 To safeguard Company’s ability to continue as going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns 

for shareholders and benefit other stakeholders; and							     
												          

	 To provide adequate return to shareholders by pricing the products and services commensurately with 
the level of risk.											         
	

	 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid 
to shareholders or issue new shares. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity comprising 
of issued share capital and unappropriated profits.							     
	

	 Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the 
capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio.								      
													           

	 This ratio is calculated as debt divided by total capital. Debt is calculated as total borrowings non-current 
borrowings, as disclosed in note 18. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ shown in the statement of 
financial position plus debt. The gearing ratio as at year ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 are as 
follows:												          

(Rupees in thousand)		  2021		  2020	
						    

Debt		  -  	 94,369
	 Total Equity		  2,885,871	 2,432,602
	 Total Capital		  2,885,871	 2,526,971
	 Gearing Ratio		  0 : 1	 0.04 : 1
	 The Company is not exposed to externally imposed capital requirements.		

37.1	 Compliance with debt covenants
	 The Company is subject to the compliance of certain financial covenants as per the long term 

financing agreements with financial institutions referred to in note 18. The financial covenants 
require Company’s current ratio, interest coverage ratio and debt service coverage ratio to be 
greater than an equal to 1 and linkage ratio to be below 2. During the year, financial covenants as 
per facility advising letter are breached however, all the payments with respect to long term loan 
are to be made in the year 2022 and are therefore, classified as current liabilities.
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38	 Transactions with related parties	
	 The related parties comprise of major shareholder, associated undertakings, entities under common 

directorship and key management personnel.
	
	 Significant transactions with related parties are as follows: 						    

	 							     
														            

	
	
	

38.1	 Ageing of receivables from related parties
	

			 

			 

	 As at June 30, 2021

	 Spintex Limited                                      41,886          41,886             -                  -                   -		
	 Rupafil Limited                                     20,565          20,565             -                  -                   -	
	 Rupafil PowerGen (Private) Limited            31              -                  -                  -                    31
	 As at June 30, 2020
	 Spintex Limited                                    41,908           41,908             -                  -                    -		
 
	 Rupafil Limited                                            71                  71            -                 -                     -	
	 Rupafil PowerGen (Private) Limited           31               -                   -                 -                    31	

39	 Remuneration of chief executive and directors
	 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain 

benefits, to the Chief Executive and full time working Directors and Executives of the Company are as 
follows:													           

Soneri Bank Limited - Associated company by virtue of Profit on Bank Deposits  3,420  4,495 
common directorship  3,420  4,495 

Rupali Nylon (Private) Limited - Associated company by Purchases during the year  (2,647)  (79)
virtue of common directorship Payments during the Year  2,647  79 

Closing balance receivable  -    -   

Rupafil Limited - Associated company by virtue of Opening balance receivable 71    -   
common directorship Sales during the year  71,180  207,195 

Purchases during the year  (665,920)  (1,106,663)
Payments during the Year  686,484  1,106,663 
Receipts during the Year  (71,251)  (207,124)
Closing balance receivable  20,564  71 

Spintex Limited - Related party Opening balance receivable  41,908  41,910 
Sales during the year  51  -   
Purchases during the year  (3,478)  (6,999)
Payments during the Year  3,478  6,997 
Receipts during the Year  (73)  -   
Closing balance receivable  41,886  41,908 

Alnu Trust - Related party Opening balance receivable  583,119  363,958 
Loan obtained during the year  -    294,161 
Repayment during the year  -    (75,000)
Closing balance receivable  583,119  583,119 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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39.1	 The Company has total 8 directors out of which only one executive director is entitled to remuneration. 
No remuneration expense has been charged in these financial statements in relation to the 
remuneration of Chief Executive Officer and other directors of the company. The Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company is provided with Company maintained car for business and personal use.

39.2	 No remuneration has been paid to executive and non-executive directors for attending company 
meetings during the year ended 30 June 2021 and 2020.						    
						    

40.	 Reclassification and rearrangements								      
Corresponding figures have been reclassified and rearranged wherever necessary to reflect more 
appropriate presentations of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison.				 
							     

														            

		
							     

Managerial remuneration  -    -    2,020  3,911  31,700  29,141

House rent  -    -    606  1,174  9,510  8,742

Utilities  -    -    202  391  3,170  2,914

Medical allowance  -    -    202  391  3,170  2,914

Retirement benefits  -    -    -    -    236  351

Other benefits  -    -    -    21  296  244

 -    -    3,030  5,888  48,082  44,306

Total number of persons 1 1 7 7 17 16

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021 

 Chief Executive Directors Executives

2021 2020  2021 2020 2021 2020

 Rupees in 000s 

 
 Note

 
 Reclassified 

from / to

 2020 
Reported 
previously

Difference
Reported 

now
 Rupees in 000s 

Other receivables From  260,989  (260,989)  -   
Loans and advances From  157,997  (157,997)  -   
Advances, deposits and other receivables 12 To  -    275,986  275,986 
Other financial assets 13 To  -    143,000  143,000 

Reserves From  372,861  (372,861)  -   
Capital reserves To  -    71,490  71,490 
Revenue reserves To  -    301,371  301,371 

Trade and other payables 20 From  852,044  (180,888)  671,156 
Contract liabilities 21 To -  25,888  25,888 
Payable to government authority 24 To -  155,000  155,000 

Short term borrowing 23 From  2,837,449  (583,119)  2,254,330 
Payable to related parties 22 To  -    583,119  583,119 
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41	 Number of employees
	 Average number of employees during the year	 1,367	 1,374	
	 Total number of employees as at June 30th	 1,389	 1,344
	 Average number of factory workers during the year	 1,233	 1,253
	 Total number of factory workers as at June 30th 	 1,221	 1,244	

42	 Employees provident fund                                                  Note	
	 Size of the Fund	 23,781,048	 22,163,324
	 Cost of investments made	 42.1	 23,658,110	 22,074,003
	 Fair value of investments	 23,658,110	 22,074,003
	 Percentage of investments made	 99.48%	 99.60%

42.1	 Size of the Fund
					   
									       

	 Break up of investments

	 Soneri Bank Limited - Saving account	 23,658,110   	99.48%	 22,074,003	  99.60%
		  23,658,110	  99.48%	 22,074,003	  99.60%

42.2	 The company had not classified the investments at fair value through profit or loss, therefore, 
there is no difference between the cost and fair value of investments as at the date of statement of 
financial position.

42.3	 The investments by the Provident Fund Trust have been made in accordance with the provisions of 
section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Rules formulated for this purpose.

 			 
43	 Production capacity	
	

	 Yarn	 10,100	 13,292	 10,100	 9,108	
Fibre	 12,000	 24,287	 12,000	 17,384

		  22,100	 37,579	 22,100	 26,492	
	
43.1	 The annual capacity disclosed above is name plate capacity. It is a standardized nomenclature over 

the world that manufacturing plants have a certain nameplate capacity. However, actual producing 
capacity of a plant is always in excess of the nameplate capacity. Also with better maintenance 
and overhauling and BMR, the plant performance increases. The Company has, over the years, 
invested in plant maintenance and has enhanced the producing capacities. Such enhancement do 
not change the nameplate capacity.

43.2	 Total production capacity utilisation is 170.04% (2020: 119.87% ) of total installed capacity.			 
			 

44	 Events after the reporting period
	 -		 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 21, 2021 has proposed a final cash dividend of 

Rs. 5.00 per share (2020: Nil) aggregating to Rs. 170.34 million (2020: Nil). The dividend and transfer 
are subject to the approval of members at the annual general meeting. The effect of such dividend 
and transfer shall be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending on June 30, 2022. 
				  

	 -	 There are no other significant events after the reporting period which may require adjustment of 
and/or disclosure in these financial statements.					   

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021

20202021

 Units in Tons

Maximum  
capacity

 Maximum  
capacity

 Actual 
production 

 Actual 
production 

2021 - Unaudited 2020 - Audited
 Rupees  Rupees Percentage of 

size of the
Fund

Percentage of 
size of the

Fund 

 20202021
Number of Persons

 2020 2021
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45	 Date of authorization for issue
	 These financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue on 21 September 2021 by the 

Board of Directors of the company.				  
	

46	 General	
	 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee unless otherwise stated.
	 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purpose of 

comparison.			   	
			 
	

   Nooruddin Feerasta				    Shehzad Feerasta	  	 Muhammad Ahsan Iqbal
Chief Executive Officer			                        Director			    Chief Financial Officer

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2021 
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Pattern of Shareholding
as at 30 June 2021

	 189	 1	  -	 100	 5,881

	 95	 101	  -	 500	 29,853

	 79	 501	  -	 1000	 57,727

	 85	 1001	  -	 5000	 229,837

	 20	 5001	  -	 10000	 147,490

	 4	 10001	  -	 15000	 49,201

	 3	 15001	  -	 20000	 59,500

	 4	 20001	  -	 25000	 90,689

	 1	 25001	  -	 30000	 29,500

	 3	 30001	  -	 35000	 94,000

	 2	 35001	  -	 40000	 80,000

	 1	 40001	  -	 45000	 44,000

	 1	 45001	  -	 50000	 50,000

	 1	 50001	  -	 55000	 53,000

	 1	 55001	  -	 60000	 55,500

	 1	 65001	  -	 70000	 67,000

	 1	 95001	  -	 100000	 100,000

	 1	 110001	  -	 115000	 115,000

	 1	 115001	  -	 120000	 119,500

	 1	 130001	  -	 135000	 133,161

	 1	 145001	  -	 150000	 146,482

	 1	 205001	  -	 210000	 209,490

	 1	 225001	  -	 230000	 226,662

	 1	 285001	  -	 290000	 286,000

	 1	 435001	  -	 440000	 436,500

	 1	 485001	  -	 490000	 488,010

	 1	 580001	  -	 585000	 584,500

	 1	 710001	  -	 715000	 714,493

	 1	 815001	  -	 820000	 816,483

	 1	 935001		  940000	 939,833

	 1	 3830001	  -	 3835000	 3,834,290

	 1	 5355001	  -	 5360000	 5,359,364

	 1	 18415001	  -	 18420000	 18,415,568

	 507		  Total		  34,068,514

            Number of			               Shareho ld ing 	  			                 Total
          Shareholders	             From	        				       To	                      Shares Held
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Pattern of Shareholding
as at 30 June 2021

Categories of Shareholders	 Number	 Shares Held	 Percentage

Individuals	 481	 3,539,202	 10.39

Joint Stock Companies	 0	 0	 0.00

Investment Companies	 0	 0	 0.00

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and				  

  their Spouses and minor Children	 9	 1,079,328	 3.15

				  

Mr. Nooruddin Feerasta		  500	 0.00

Mr. Muhammad Rashid Zahir		  500	 0.00

Mr. Yasseen M. Sayani		  939,833	 2.76

Mrs. Amyna Feerasta		  500	 0.00

Mr. Sultan Ali Rajwany		  21,345	 0.06

Mr. Shehzad Feerasta		  490	 0.00

Mr. Zeeshan Feerasta		  10	 0.00

Mr. Abdul Hayee		  1,150	 0.00

Mrs. Laila Y. Sayani w/o Mr. Yaseen M. Sayani		  115,000	 0.34

Total:			   1,079,328	 3.16

					   

Executives

National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Deptt.	 5	 1,553,505	 4.56

Investment Corporation of Pakistan	 1	 200	 0.00

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

Public Sector Companies and Corporations				  

Banks, DFIs, NBFIs, Insurance Companies, Modaraba &

    Mutual Funds	 8	 287,057	 0.84

Foreign Investors	 0	 0	 0.00

Co-operative Societies	 0	 0	 0.00

Trusts		 3	 27,609,222	 81.04

Others			 

Total:		  507	 34,068,514	 100.00

Name of Shareholders		  No. of Shares Held	 Percentage

Trustees Feerasta Senior Trust		  18,415,568	 54.05

Trustees ALNU Trust		  9,193,654	 26.99

Total:			   27,609,222	 81.04

Trading in Shares During 2020-21:	

Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary made no sale/purchase of shares during the year

SHARE-HOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE COMPANY
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